
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

The City Bridge Trust Committee 

 
Date: WEDNESDAY, 12 FEBRUARY 2014 

Time: 1.45pm 

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOMS, 2ND FLOOR, WEST WING, GUILDHALL 

 
Members: Deputy Billy Dove (Chairman) 

Jeremy Mayhew (Deputy Chairman) 
Deputy Ken Ayers 
Simon Duckworth 
Stuart Fraser 
Marianne Fredericks 
Alderman Alison Gowman 
Deputy Revd Stephen Haines 
Vivienne Littlechild 
Edward Lord 
Wendy Mead 
Alderman Matthew Richardson 
Ian Seaton 
Vacancy  
The Rt Hon the Lord Mayor Alderman Fiona Woolf (Ex-Officio Member) 
 

 
 
 
Enquiries: Xanthe Couture  

tel. no.: 020 7332 3113 
xanthe.couture@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

 
 

 
Lunch will be served in the Guildhall Club at 1pm 

 

 
John Barradell 

Town Clerk and Chief Executive 

Public Document Pack



AGENDA 

 
 

Part 1 - Public Agenda 
 
1. APOLOGIES 
 
2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF 

ITEMS ON THE AGENDA 
 
3. MINUTES 
 To agree the minutes and non-public summary of the meeting held 9 January 2014. 

 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 1 - 8) 

 
4. OUTSTANDING ITEMS 
 To receive a report of the Town Clerk. 
 For Information 
 (Pages 9 - 10) 

 
5. PROGRESS REPORT AND EVENTS 
 To receive a progress report of the Chief Grants Officer. 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 11 - 22) 

 
6. GRANT APPLICATIONS STATISTICAL REPORT 
 To receive a report of the Chief Grants Officer.  
 For Decision 
 (Pages 23 - 28) 

 
7. GRANT AND STRATEGIC INITIATIVES RECOMMENDATIONS AND 

ASSESSMENTS 
 To consider the Chief Grants Officer’s report on grant recommendations as follows -  
 For Decision 
 (Pages 29 - 32) 

 
 a) National Army Museum - Recommended Grant £50,000   

                                                                                                     (Pages 33 - 46) 
 

 b) Foundation for Women's Health Research and Development FORWARD - 
Recommended Grant £90,000   
                                                                                                     (Pages 47 - 58) 

 

 c) Eaves Housing for Women - Recommended Grant £103,000   
                                                                                                     (Pages 59 - 70) 

 

 d) Evelyn Oldfield Unit - Recommended Grant £92,000   
                                                                                                     (Pages 71 - 80) 

 

 e) SPICE (London Time Credits) - Recommended Grant £385,200   
                                                                                                     (Pages 81 - 86) 

 



3 
 

 f) Greening the Economy Conference - Recommended Grant £20,000   
 
                                                                                                     (Pages 87 - 92) 

 

 g) Social Finance's Impact Incubator Project - Recommended Grant £24,000  
     
                                                                                                     (Pages 93 - 96) 

 

 h) Islington Giving - Recommended Grant £220,000   
                                                                                                   (Pages 97 - 100) 

 

 i) London' Funders - Recommended Grant £100,000   
                                                                                                 (Pages 101 - 112) 

 

 j) Voluntary Action Westminster - Recommended Grant £94,000   
 
                                                                                                 (Pages 113 - 124) 

 

8. TO CONSIDER REPORTS OF THE CHIEF GRANTS OFFICER AS FOLLOWS:- 
 
 a) Grants Recommended for Rejection   

                                                                                                        For Decision 
                                                                                                 (Pages 125 - 132) 

 

 b) Withdrawn and Lapsed Applications   
                                                                                                   For Information  
                                                                                                 (Pages 133 - 134) 

 

 c) Grants Approved under Delegated Authority   
                                                                                                   For Information  
                                                                                                 (Pages 135 - 136) 

 

 d) Reports on Monitoring Visits   
                                                                                                   For Information  
                                                                                                 (Pages 137 - 142) 

 

9. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE 
 
10. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS TO BE URGENT 
 
11. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 
 MOTION – That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public 

be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that 
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part I of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act. 
 

Part 2 - Non-Public Agenda 
 
12. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES 
 To agree the non-public minutes of the meeting held on 9 January 2014.  
 For Decision 
 (Pages 143 - 144) 
13. REVISED MEMBERS' HANDBOOK 
 To receive a report of the Chief Grants Officer.  



 For Decision 
 (Pages 145 - 202) 

 
14. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE 
 
15. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT AND 

WHICH THE COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE 
PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED 

 



THE CITY BRIDGE TRUST COMMITTEE 
 

Thursday, 9 January 2014  
 

Minutes of the meeting of The City Bridge Trust Committee held at Guildhall, EC2 on 
Thursday, 9 January 2014 at 1.45pm 

 
Present 
 
Members: 
Deputy Billy Dove (Chairman) 
Jeremy Mayhew (Deputy Chairman) 
Deputy Ken Ayers 
Simon Duckworth 
Stuart Fraser 
Marianne Fredericks 
Alderman Alison Gowman 
Deputy the Revd Stephen Haines 
Vivienne Littlechild 
Edward Lord 
Wendy Mead 
Alderman Matthew Richardson 
Ian Seaton 
 

 
Officers: 
Xanthe Couture 
Susanna Lascelles 

- Town Clerk's Department 
- Press Office, Town Clerk’s Department 

Steven Reynolds - Chamberlain's Department 

Jenna Rigley - Chamberlain's Department 

David Farnsworth - The City Bridge Trust 

Ciaran Rafferty - The City Bridge Trust 

Sandra Davidson - The City Bridge Trust 

Jemma Grieve Combes - The City Bridge Trust 

Tim Wilson 
Karisia Gichuke 
Julia Mirkin 

- The City Bridge Trust 
- The City Bridge Trust 
- The City Bridge Trust 

 
Also in attendance  
Representatives from the following organisations, whom the Chairman welcomed to 
the meeting were also present: 
 

• London Youth 

 
• Westminster Arts 

 
• Switchback Initiative  
 

• City Philanthropy  

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



 
1. APOLOGIES  

There were no apologies; however the Chairman noted that due to a funeral 
which many Members had attended, the substantive proceedings of the 
meeting would be delayed to allow for Members to arrive. 
 
The Chairman gave thanks to Senior Grants Officer Karisia Gichuke for her 
hard work and service to the Committee as this was the last meeting she would 
be attending as part of her one year appointment to City Bridge Trust. 
 

2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN 
RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA  
Ian Seaton declared a non-pecuniary interest in respect of Item 6, Professional 
Development Events attended, due to being a Director of the Livery Company 
Apprenticeship Scheme, which had undertaken a joint venture with Creative & 
Cultural Skills.  
 
The Chairman and Mr Simon Duckworth declared a non-pecuniary interest in 
respect of Item 8.cc) St Ethelburga’s Centre for Reconciliation and Peace due 
to being voters in their Wards.  
 

3. MINUTES  
The public minutes and summary of the meeting held on 28 November 2013 
were approved as a correct record, subject to the following amendments –  
 

• Item 2 Declarations of Interest corrected to read Deputy Ken Ayers, Marianne 
Fredericks and the Chairman’s non-pecuniary interest under Item 9.a) Pan-
London Personalisation Project, due to their involvement with Broadway 
Homelessness Support, and not Item 8.b) National Theatre. 
 

Matter Arising 
Item 13 (The COL as Trustees of Bridge House Estates) - The Chairman noted that a 
report on this matter would be received at the next meeting of the Court of Common 
Council.  

 
4. OUTSTANDING ITEMS  

The Committee received a report of the Town Clerk that identified items which 
required further actions by officers.  
 
Members were informed that a satisfactory budget had been received for 
2013/14 from Young People Matter.  
 

5. PROPOSED REVENUE BUDGETS - 2014/15  
The Committee considered the annual submission of the revenue budgets 
overseen by the City Bridge Trust Committee that sought approval for the 
proposed 2014/15 budget for subsequent submission to the Finance 
Committee.  
 
The Chamberlain noted that the decrease of £6.526m in budgeted net 
expenditure for 2014/15 was mainly due to the removal of two one-off grant 
programmes provided in 2013/14, one towards young people Not in 

Page 2



Employment, Education or Training (£3.2m) and the other for the expansion of 
City Carers Open House (£280,000), and the removal of a one-off budget carry 
forward of £2.966m from 2012/13 to 2013/14. 
 
RESOLVED – That,  

a) the provisional 2014/15 budget be approved for submission to the 
Finance Committee; and 

b) the Chamberlain be authorised to revise the budget to allow for any 
necessary realignment of funds resulting from corporate projects.  

 
6. PROGRESS REPORT AND EVENTS  

The Committee considered the regular progress report and events update of 
the Chief Grants Officer.  
  
The Chief Grants Officer noted Members were asked to approve the principles 
of the draft report listed in Appendix B to his Progress Report – Resourcing for 
the City of London Corporation’s Social Investment Activity, which sought to 
make recommendations on the future resourcing of the City’s social investment 
work following the first year of operation of the Social Investment Fund.  
 
The Chief Grants Officer stated that Social Investment Board officers had been 
examining fund management costs and were working towards bringing more 
financial expertise in-house, before third parties were consulted on social 
investments.  
 
The Committee received a presentation from City Philanthropy Manager, 
Cheryl Chapman, which outlined the achievements of the organisation in its first 
full year of funding. The City Philanthropy exhibition, which documented the 
history of philanthropy in the City had received good media coverage and a 
book was now available which was sold online. Work and networks were being 
established with other organisations to grow philanthropy in the City, including 
the Lord Mayor’s Office, The City Funding Network and Young Philanthropy.  
 
A Member raised concern over a lack of awareness of the work of Young 
Philanthropy previous to this presentation.  Members and Ms Chapman 
discussed the aims of City Philanthropy whose success rested on achieving the 
support of City companies as well as the support of City Bridge Trust Members 
to build awareness of the role of City Philanthropy. 
 

7. GRANT APPLICATIONS STATISTICAL REPORT  
The Committee considered a report of the Chief Grants Officer, which dealt with 
the recommendations relating to applications received on the current 
programmes. Members noted that a total of 27 applications would be dealt with 
at the meeting, of which 10 were recommended for approval, 6 recommended 
for rejection, 3 had been withdrawn and 2 had lapsed. 6 were noted as 
proposed for approval under delegated authority.  
 
The Deputy Chairman remarked that Table 2 – Grant approvals by outcome 
area – was in a much-improved format but, in future, could provide more details 
on the trends, the balance of funds, and additional analysis. In reply, Officers 

Page 3



advised they were happy to amend the report as advised and to receive further 
comments on the structure of the report so that it could best serve as a 
strategic tool. 
 
RESOLVED – That, 

a) Members note the content of the report; and 
b) the individual grant recommends in relation to the applications set out in 

the summary schedule and other papers be considered.  
  

8. GRANT RECOMMENDATIONS AND ASSESSMENTS  
The Committee considered a report of the Chief Grants Officer which 
recommended grants to various organisations.  
 
Members considered each application and the following observations were 
noted: 
 
Item 8.f) (Shoreditch Trust) – officers noted that the revised amount requested 
was due to the organisation’s revision to its original funding request for two full 
time posts, which was not Trust policy. 
 
Item 8.g) (The Switchback Initiative) – officers noted that they had examined 
the trend of deficit spend and were satisfied with the figures to date.  
 
Item 8.i) (Action for Kids) – Members expressed concern over the small number 
of active volunteers, and officers replied that the number listed was with regard 
to those volunteers which worked at the headquarters and not across London 
boroughs. Officers remarked the charity had developed a strong reputation to 
date with employers.  
 
Item 8.j) (Partnership with Prisoners Abroad) – the Chief Grants Officer stated 
the programme would receive a Trust grant contribution for an 18 month period 
initially, upon which support would be re-assessed. Members requested that it 
be noted the Director of Economic Development at the City of London 
Corporation was a Trustee of Prisoners Abroad. 
 
8.a) British Wheelchair Basketball - Recommended Grant £80,380  
 
£8,380 over three years (£26,000; £26,780; £27,600) for the salary of the full 
time Wheelchair Basketball London Development Officer.  
 
8.b) Paddington Development Trust - Recommended Grant £80,000  
 
£80,000 over two years (2 x £40,000) as a final contribution towards the 
salaries and associated running costs of PDT’s community development work 
in Queen’s Park on condition that a satisfactory monitoring report is provided 
for the current grant.  
 
 
 
 

Page 4



8.c) St Ethelburga's Centre for Reconciliation and Peace - Recommended 
Grant £89,500  

£89,5000 over three years (£33,7000; £27,800; £28,000) for the salary and 
costs of developing programme for emerging leaders from divided communities 
in London to build improved community relations and promote community 
engagement.  
 
8.d) Ace of Clubs - Recommended Grant £47,400  
 
£47,400 over 3 years (£10,400; £18,500; £18;500) towards the salary and 
associated costs a Centre Manager (30hpw), subject to the Trust not being the 
organisation’s largest single funder in years 2 and 3. 
 
8.e) Westminster Arts - Recommended Grant £72,000  
 
£72,000 over three years (£17,000; £25,000; £30,000) towards Westminster 
Arts’ Resonate programme, on the conditions that the balance of funding is 
raised.  
 
8.f) Shoreditch Trust - Recommended Grant £132,700  
 
£132,700 over three years (£43,000;£44,000;£45,7000 towards a full time Lead 
Facilitator and the running costs of Blue Marble Training programme to support 
care leavers and ex-offenders to develop skills and access opportunities for 
fulfilling careers in food. 
 
8.g) The Switchback Initiative - Recommended Grant £96,000  
 
£96,000 over three years (£31,000; £32,000; £33,000) towards the salary and 
running costs of a Switchback Mentor to provide long-term, semi-therapeutic 
relationships for young adult offenders from London.  
 
8.h) Advice UK - Recommended Grant £75,000  
 
£75,000 over two years (£50,000; £25,000) towards the salary and associated 
running costs of a 3 day a week Development Consultant in order to establish 
the BAMER Advice Network as an independent organisation.  
 
8.i) Action for Kids - Recommended Grant £107,700  
 
£107,000 over three years (£36,500; £35,600; £35,600) for the salary of a f/t 
Job Coach and related project costs to help young disabled Londoners into 
employment. 
  
8.j) Partnership with Prisoners Abroad - Recommended Grant £330,000  
 
£330,000 from the City Bridge Trust grants budget for 2013/14 in order to 
establish and administer a hardship fund for destitute British citizens returning 
to London after imprisonment overseas. 
 

Page 5



9. TO CONSIDER REPORTS OF THE CHIEF GRANTS OFFICER AS 
FOLLOWS:-  
 
9.a) Applications recommended for rejection  
 
The Committee considered a report of the Chief Grants Officer which 
recommended that 6 grant applications from the Investing in Londoners and 
Working for Londoners programme be rejected for the reasons identified in the 
schedule attached to the report.  
 
9.b) Withdrawn and Lapsed Applications  
 
The Committee received a report of the Chief Grants Officer which provided 
details of 3 applications which had been withdrawn. 
 
9.c) Grants Approved under Delegated Authority  
 
The Committee received a report of the Chief Grants Officer which advised 
Members of 6 grants, totalling £52,526, which had been presented for approval 
under delegated authority to the Chief Grants Officer in consultation with the 
Chairman and Deputy Chairman. 
 
Members remarked that funding listed for City Bridge Trust to complete the 
Parklife London website as part of the Trust’s Growing Localities Initiative, 
looked as if the Trust was paying itself. Members and officers discussed that 
this additional funding had been agreed as a delegated authority through the 
grant application approved by the Committee.  
 
Members requested that these instances be clarified in future, either through 
the Chief Grants Officer’s report or by including a category of delegated 
authorities to note such exceptions in the report received by the Committee. 
 
9.d) Reports on Monitoring Visits  
 
The Committee received a report of the Chie Grants Officer relative to 2 visits 
that had been undertaken.  
 

10. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE 
COMMITTEE  
Questions were raised in respect of the following - 
 
The Deputy Chairman queried whether the Trust should consider directing 
funding to projects or charities in any of the London boroughs where social 
tensions were evident.  Members felt that more energy should instead be spent 
locating suitable projects/charities to fund at all times across the boroughs, and 
particularly those that were receiving less Trust funds.  
 
The Chief Grants Officer advised that Officers were considering a proposal to 
Members at the February and March 2014 meetings to earmark funds from the 
Trust’s underspend for some higher level, pro-active grants. Members 

Page 6



suggested that those funding applications, that had successful support models, 
could be rolled out to those boroughs that were currently underrepresented. 
 

11. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS TO BE 
URGENT  
There were no items of urgent business.  
 

12. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC  
RESOLVED – That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972, 
the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items on the grounds 
that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1 
of the Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act.  
 
Item No   Exempt Paragraphs 
13                                        3 
14     3 
 
 

13. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES  
The non-public minutes of the meeting held on 28 November 2013 were 
approved as a correct record. 
 
 

14. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE 
COMMITTEE  
Questions were raised in respect of the following –  
 
Funding for special projects. 
 

15. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 
AND WHICH THE COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED 
WHILST THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED  
There were no items of urgent business.  
 

 
 
The meeting ended at 3.02pm 
 
 
 

Chairman 
 
 
 
Contact Officer: Xanthe Couture  
tel. no.: 020 7332 3113 
xanthe.couture@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
 

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



     
 

 

 

 
Item 

 

 
Action 

Officer responsible  
Progress by 

30 October 2013 

Social Investment 
funding 

 Update report on CBT grantees who may be able to access Social 
Investment funding. 

Tim Wilson Market analysis to start 
December 2013. New grants 
programme (part of Investing in 
Londoners) to launch March 
2014 

Outstanding Financial Conditions: CBT Committee –  9 January 2014 

Paddington 
Development Trust 

Grant subject to receipt of satisfactory monitoring report for current 

grant. 

Jenny Field 31st March 2014 

Outstanding Financial Conditions: CBT Committee – 4 September 2013 

Castlehaven 
Community 
Association 

Grant conditional on securing full match funding. Joan 
Millbank/Chamberlain 

 Organisation expects to know 
outcome of match-funding bid 
in March/April 2014 

Outstanding  Financial Conditions: CBT Committee – 28 November 2013 

Otakar Music Trust 
 

Grant subject to satisfactory budget for 2014 Ciaran 
Rafferty/Chamberlain 

Anticipated 9th January 2014 

SSBA Community 
Trust 

Grant subject to receipt of satisfactory audited accounts for the 
period ended 31st March 2013 

Sandra 
Davidson/Chamberlai
n 

Due by 12th February 2014 

A
genda Item

 4

P
age 9



P
age 10

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Committee: Date: Item No. 

The City Bridge Trust  12th February 2014  

Subject: 

Progress Report 

Public 

 

Report of: 

Chief Grants Officer 

For Decision 

 

Summary  

 

This is a regular Progress Report by the Chief Grants Officer. 

       Recommendations – That: 

 

     i)  you receive this report and note its contents; and 

 ii) you approve an allocation of £300,000 from your grants budget         

for 2013/14 for delivery of the London Youth Quality Mark Awards 

scheme, and 
 iii) you increase your allocation for Strategic Initiatives for 2013/14 by 

up to £2.5m. 

Main Report 

1.0 Business Plan Update for Quarter 3 

 

1.1 In April 2013, you agreed the City Bridge Trust Business Plan for 2013 – 

 2016. This contained eight Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) across 
 eight objectives.  A table summarising the progress made against the 

 KPIs you agreed is appended at Appendix A. 
 

1.2 You will note that each KPI is designated a ‘traffic light’ status.  Seven 

out of the eight KPIs are currently showing a ‘green’ status, that is ‘the 

project will be delivered on budget, time, and to the agreed 
specification’. KPI 1 is showing an amber status (‘off track but with 

actions in place to improve’) because it has not been possible to meet 

the target of concluding the assessment of all applications made on your 

old Working with Londoners by your January 2014 meeting.  At the time 
of writing, nine Working with Londoners applications remained pending, 

of which five are recommended for a grant at today’s meeting.  The 

delay has been caused as a result of the need for additional information 

from the applicants concerned to assist in the assessment of their 

proposals.  However, it is anticipated that the remaining four applications 

will be brought to your March 2014 meeting.  

1.3 Business planning across the Corporation for 2014/15 is now underway 

and officers anticipate bringing the 2014/17 City Bridge Trust Business 

Plan for your approval to your Committee meeting in March 2014. 

Agenda Item 5

Page 11



2.0 Strategic Initiatives 2013/14 

 

2.1 Since, 2002/03, you have agreed that up to 5% of your total annual 

grants budget could be used towards Strategic Initiatives that would 

inform and add value to your wider grant-making, as well as position the 

Trust as a strategic and creative grant-maker.  Over the years, you have 

supported a number of Strategic Initiatives that have built your 

reputation in this respect, such as your instigation of the Fear and 

Fashion initiative in collaboration with four other funders; your support 

for Islington Giving, a coalition of funders and other partners tackling 

poverty in Islington (and the subject of a proposal to replicate the model 

in other parts of London included in your papers today) and your ‘City 

Philanthropy – a Wealth of Opportunity’ initiative - a cluster of 

philanthropic activities designed to inspire and grow the next generation 

of City Philanthropists. 

 

2.2 2012/13 saw an unprecedented call on your budget for Strategic 

Initiatives as you responded to changing and unparalleled need in the 
charitable operating environment.  For example, your ability to engage 

with the social investment agenda has been accelerated through the 

support of a Social Investment Specialist in 2012/13 and 2013/14 

resourced from your allocation for Strategic Initiatives. 
 

2.3 As a consequence of this additional demand, you agreed at your October 
2012 meeting to increase the allocation of 5% of the 2012/13 grants 

budget (£847,500) by an additional £500,000 in order to meet the cost 

of initiatives then in development. As London’s largest grant-maker, your 

strategic importance to London’s voluntary sector is more important than 
ever, and officers anticipate a growing role in the future for the Trust as 

a ‘pro-active’ funder, in parallel and complementary to your day-to-day 
grant-making activity on your open programmes. 

 

2.4 At your last meeting, we advised you that several higher value Strategic 

Initiatives would be brought to your February and March 2014 meetings.  

Included amongst your papers today are three such initiatives (the 

expansion of the London Time Credits; the development of Islington 

Giving’s model into other parts of London; and support for Social 

Finance’s Impact Incubator) with a recommended total of £629,200. 

 

2.5 Other Strategic Initiatives in the pipeline are set out in Table 1 below and 

will be brought to your March 2014 meeting.  The estimated total for 

these is £2,021,750.  You will see from today’s ‘Grant Applications 

Statistical Report’ that if all recommendations at this meeting are 

approved, there remains £6.5m in your grants budget for 2013/14.  Your 

allocation for Strategic initiatives in 2013/14 was £900,000 (5% of 

£17.98m).  Before today’s meeting, a total of £605,507 had been 

approved from this sum, leaving a balance of £294,493.  You are asked 

to increase your allocation for Strategic Initiatives by up to £2.5m to 

enable the proposals before you today, and those in the pipeline, to be 

Page 12



funded.  This will not be at the expense of applications considered on 

your open programmes. 

 

Table 1: 

 

Organisation 

 

Amount* Purpose 

City Philanthropy 120,000 To expand the current level of activity 

 

Young Philanthropy 71,750 To meet growing demand 

 

Beacon Awards 50,000 To repeat the Beacon Awards for City 

Philanthropy during 2014-16 

 

Legal Aid Support Trust 450,000 For dispersal to London advice agencies 

 

London Youth 250,000 For a London-wide inclusion project 

 

Thames 21 350,000 Three-year scheme to improve natural 

drainage systems 

 

Open Spaces 450,000 Continuation of education work on 

Hampstead Heath and Epping Forest 

 

Lord Mayor’s Continuum 130,000 Continuation of current grant for 2 years 

 

Media Trust 150,000 Continuation of Young Reporters Project 

   

Total 2,021,750  

 
*these are current best estimates and may be subject to change 

 
2.6 Even allowing for this additional allocation for Strategic Initiatives, there 

is likely to be a balance of between £3m and £4m on your grants budget 

for 2013/14. As reported verbally at your last meeting, officers are 

investigating options for granting this money for the benefit of London’s 

communities.  These include a targeted small grants programme, as well 

as a successor scheme for your Growing Localities initiative.  (A report 

requesting a budget of up to £20,000 to organise a ‘Greening the 

Economy’ conference is included in your papers today.  Should you 
approve this sum, it is anticipated that the learning from the conference 

will be used to help inform and shape the development of the successor 

to Growing Localities).  

 
2.7 Officers will bring proposals to your next meeting to seek approval to 

carry forward the unspent grants budget from 2013/14 into 2014/15 in 

order to develop these grants programmes. 

Page 13



3.0 The Value of Peer Support 

 

3.1 In January your officer, Ciaran Rafferty, attended an event to launch a 

new research report by the HIV charity Positively UK. You are currently 

funding the organisation’s peer support work with young people – a grant 

which has been making very good progress.  

 

3.2 This research sampled a wide variety of the charity’s 1,000+ users, 

 ranging in age from 15-73 years. People living with HIV are from all 

 backgrounds and sexuality – 85% of this sample were heterosexual; 

 71% were female; 64% were Black-African. Many young people living 

 with HIV contract it at birth. (There was a powerful presentation from a 

 15 year old service user who was infected at birth but his mother didn’t 

 tell him and he only found out when, aged 9, a clumsy receptionist at his 

 doctor’s surgery blurted it out.) 

 

3.3 The research, undertaken to recognised academic standards, found that 

 Peer Support does improve the physical, emotional and social well-being 
 of people living with HIV. Face-to-face support was infinitely more 

 popular than email/telephone support and it enables people to better 

 manage their treatments. 

 
3.4 One of the report’s champions, Professor Jane Anderson (consultant 

 physician and honorary senior lecturer at Barts and The London 
 Hospital), stated that such projects are vital to the NHS not only for the 

 positive effect on health and well-being but also for ensuring that 

 statutory health services are responsive and fit for purpose. (A copy of 

 the report is available in the Trust’s office.) 
 

 
4.0 Allocation of Funds for London Youth Quality Mark Awards     

scheme 

 

4.1 Members will be familiar with the London Youth Quality Mark Awards 

 programme which is a strand of Investing in Londoners. It was launched 

 in late October 2013 at an event attended by the Chairman and by HRH 

 The Duke of Edinburgh, Patron of London Youth. 

 

4.2 The scheme’s aim is to support youth work in London by promoting and 

 supporting the highest standards of service delivery by implementing a 

 grant award scheme in partnership with London Youth (the membership 

 body for youth work providers in the capital). The scheme will reward 

 those organisations which achieve the accredited Quality Mark to either 

 silver or gold standard. 

 

4.3 As the first of these awards is imminent your approval is sought to 

 allocate a set sum for this programme for the next year. With the 

 average award being c.£5,000 and London Youth estimating that it could 

 process 40-50 Quality Marks in a full year it is recommended that funds 

Page 14



 up to a maximum of £300,000 be allocated to this scheme for the next 

 12 months. 

 

4.4 Awards made through this scheme will be reported to your Committee at 

 your meetings as part of the regular grant analysis data within your 

 papers (the Grant Applications Statistical Report). 

 

 

 

 

 Recommendations – That: 

 

 i) you receive this report and note its contents; and 
 

ii) you approve an allocation of £300,000 from your grants budget for        

2013/14 for delivery of the London Youth Quality Mark Awards scheme, 

and 

iii) you increase your allocation for Strategic Initiatives for 2013/14 by 

up to £2.5m. 
 

 
 

 

 

David Farnsworth, Chief Grants Officer 
020 7332 3713 

david.farnsworth@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
Report written: 29th January 2014              

Page 15



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



                                                                                              Appendix A

KPI Description Date/Target Progress Status

1
Conclude assessment of all applications received on 

Working with Londoners
Jan-14

Notice of the closure of the Working with Londoners programmes was given on 21st June 2013, with a final submission deadline of 5th July 2013 for 

those already working on applications. 71 applications were received in the period 1st - 5th July 2013.   It had been anticipated that decisions on all 

these would be completed by the January 2014 Committee meeting.  Whilst this is the case for the majority of these applications, in some instances 

additional information was required in order to complete the assessment, leading to some slippage in the timetable.  At the time of writing this, 9 

applications remained pending, of which 5 are recommended for a grant at the February 2014 Committee meeting.  It is anticipated that the remaining 4 

will be brought to the March 2014 Committee meeting.   A

The new Investing in Londoners programmes were 'soft-launched' on 26th September 2013. The London Youth Quality Mark Awards were launched on 

30th October 2013 and the Arts Apprenticeships were launched on 18th November. Partnership arrangements with the Buttle Trust and Prisoners 

Abroad to establish hardship funds for individuals in need were approved in November 2013 and January 2014.  Other closed programmes are due to be 

rolled out over the next 5 years. G

3 Maintain a high level of satisfaction from grant recipients.

Target - 95% 

satisfaction 

rating (ie 

good/very 

good).

On a random sample of recently received monitoring and evaluation reports, 82% rated their dealings with the Trust as 'very good'; and 16% as 'good' - 

giving an overall satisfaction rating of 98%. The annual programme of 70 monitoring visits is due to take place between November 2013 and March 

2014. In addition, several Members of the Committee identified organisations they wished to visit.  Some of these have been done whilst others are in 

the process of being arranged. Unannounced visits are due to be made to 25 organisations before 31st March 2014.  Following the Quinquennial 

Review, the Committee agreed new monitoring and evaluation policies for our Investing in Londoners programmes due for implementation during 

2014/15.  A Stakeholder Perception study has been commissioned which is due to commence in February 2014.

G

4

Milestones for Growing Localities and Wembley National 

Stadium Trust (WNST) achieved.
Target - Eight 

promotional 

films to be 

made with 

Growing 

Localities 

grantees in 

partnership 

with the Media 

Trust, over the 

summer of 

2013. 

Decisions on 

the London-

wide WNST 

grants to be 

made in June 

2013. Two LB 

Brent grants 

rounds to be 

completed 

during 

2013/14.

Growing Localities: Eight films were completed by September 2013. In addition, a Media Trust film, featuring Growing Localities grantees and narrated 

by Blue Peter presenter, Chris Collins, was broadcast on the Community Channel on 26th and 28th May 2013.  Lemos & Crane have been 

commissoned to run the 'Growing Localities' Awards for a second year. 140 applications received, exceeding the target of 100.  Judging is due to take 

place in March 2014.                                                                                                                                                                                                                            

Wembley National Stadium Trust: The third grants round was launched in October 2013 (2 rounds benefitting Brent groups and one London-wide) 

which was over subscribed by 3x .  Awards totalling £145k were approved by WNST Board in Janaury 2014.

G

Objective 2 - Monitoring and Evaluation - to continue the development and implementation of our monitoring and evaluation systems

Objective 3 - Strategic Initiatives - to progress a programme of strategic and special initiatives

Review of CBT Business Plan Progress - April 2013 - January 2014                                                                                                                                       

Objective 1 - Grant Making - to agree, implement and promote our new grants programmes

2 Launch new Grants Programmes

Target - to 

launch 

between 

August and 

October 2013

$irvlpt1p.xlsx

P
age 17



                                                                                              Appendix A

5
Develop the 'City Philanthropy - a Wealth of Opportunity' 

website and other related activities.

Target - 1 

headline article 

per month; 2 

City Funding 

Network events 

held; 15 'Young 

Philanthropy' 

syndicates 

established by 

March 2014; 1 

Beacon 

Fellowship 

Award for City 

Philanthropy 

event.

The website remains an essential and central hub for the various projects that are being undertaken under the 'City Philanthropy' banner. Three in-depth 

articles have been published on City Philanthropy so far during 2013/14, in the Evening Standard and the magazines City Wealth and Tempus, as well 

as a letter from the City Philanthropy Manager in the Evening Standard.  The Telegraph ran an in-depth interview with Heather Rabbatts CBE in 

November 2013 who is due to receive the Freedom of the City in recognition of her charitable work.  The interview took place at Charterhouse during the 

City Philanthropy Exhibtion which was launched by the Lord Mayor at Charterhouse on 29th October 2013.  The exhibition attracted widespread media 

interest, including news items on national TV and radio, as well as national press and social media.  A book on City Philanthropy was launched at the 

same time.  150 attended the opening whilst attendance at the exhibition by the public has averaged 100 people a day.  A complementary programme of 

events took place during November which draw in a further 440 visitors. The City Funding Network held its first event for 2013/14 in April 2013 at 

Charterhouse, where £23,000 was raised for 3 charities in just 11 minutes.  The second event took place on 4th December and raised £32,000 for four 

charities. Young Philanthropy has established 18 syndicates within City firms which will invest approximately £108,000 during the year in a range of 

projects. A further 26 syndicates are due to launch in 2013 which will invest approximately £156,000. UK Community Foundations, which runs the 

Beacon Fellowship awards, has drawn up proposals for running the Beacon Award for a second time during 2014-16 which will be considered at the 

March 2014 Committee meeting, alongside proposals to build on the momentum of City Philanthropy and expand its activities.  

G

6
Develop and implement procedures for social investment 

analysis.

Target - 

Autumn 2013

The Court of Common Council approved criteria for social investment at its October 2012 meeting. Further criteria were agreed by the Social Investment Board at its 

meetings in December 2012 and April 2013. Investment criteria are subject to regular review by the Social Investment Board. Six investments totalling £2.6m have been 

approved to date, of which four (£1.8m) were approved during the period April to December 2013.  Proposals for the future resourcing of the City Corporation's social 

investment work were approved by the City Bridge Trust, Finance and Policy & Resources Committees in January 2014.

G

7
Publish articles of strategic importance to the Trust in 

relevant media outlets.
None set

Officers have continued to work closely with the Public Relations Office and Champollion in order to promote the Trust's work. As well as media work on 

City Philanthropy, there has been considerable coverage of some of the work funded on your Growing Localities and Working with Londoners 

programmes, as well as your new Investing in Londoners programmes, with sixteen releases reaching several outlets (one release is often picked up by 

several local papers).  Champollion continued to work on the Parklife London website (still in beta phase) which has attracted considerable social media 

attention, notably through influential bloggers.  The site should be complete by the end of March 2014.

G

8 Ensure all staff appraisals completed to time. Target - 100%
All CBT staff's mid-year appraisals have taken place and line managers are on track to complete end of year appraisals by April 2014.  The CBT team 

will set new learning objectives for 2014/14 at the same time. G

Status Definitions

R (ed)     - Off target with unresolved issues
�

The project/activity will not be completed within the agreed budget, timescale or specification and a decision will be required on how to proceed

A (mber) - Off track but with actions in hand to improve
�

The project/activity is in danger of not being completed within the agreed budget, timetable or specification but action is being taken to ensure that the 

project will be delivered within agreed limits

G (reen)  - On track/to plan
�

The project/activity will be delivered on budget, time and to the agreed specification

Objective 8 - Performance and Corporate Management - to continually develop staff performance and our contribution towards wider City Corporation aims and objectives

Objective 5 - Corporate Philanthropy - to implement the CoL's Strategy on Philanthropy through a programme of activities under the "City Philanthropy - A Wealth of Opportunity" banner

Objective 6 - Social Investment Strategy - to further the development and implementation of our approach to social investment and social financing of the third sector

Objective 7 - Communications and Media - to maintain an active Communications Strategy for the Trust and its relation to the broader City Corporation promotion of its charitable activities 

$irvlpt1p.xlsx

P
age 18



  THE CITY BRIDGE TRUST  

 

Professional Development Events, Conferences and Seminars  
Attended 21st December 2013 to 27th January 2014                             

 
Date 
 

Organisation Type of Event City of London’s 
Representative 

Location/ 
Borough 

Summary Comments 
 

06/01/14 Thames21 Monitoring visit Alderman Alison  
Gowman; Ian 
Seaton; Ciaran 
Rafferty, Principal 
Grants Officer 

City Regular monitoring visit to hear of the 
charity’s work supporting local people to 
keep London’s waterways clean. 

08/01/14 BBC Children in 
Need 

Grants 
Committee 

Ciaran Rafferty, 
Principal Grants 
Officer 

White City Your officer sits on the CiN committee. 

21/01/14 Positively UK Report launch Ciaran Rafferty, 
Principal Grants 
Officer 

Portman 
Square 

A fuller report is contained within the 
Chief Grants Officer’s report. 

07/01/14 Southbank 
Centre 

Monitoring 
Visit 

Alderman Alison 
Gowman; 
Karisia Gichuke, 
Senior Grants 
Officer 

The Southbank This was a regular monitoring visit to the 
Southbank Centre and included a visit to 
the Garden and meeting the project 
workers. 

13/01/14 Step by Step Visit Jemma Grieve 
Combes, Grants 
Officer; Anita 
Williams, Payments 
Officer 

Hornsey Road 
Leisure Centre, 
Finsbury Park 

Visit to see an ice-skating session with 
disabled children and young people from 
the Orthodox Jewish community as part 
of a City Bridge Trust funded project. 
 

16/01/14 City of London 
Corporation 

The London 
Government 
Dinner 

The Chairman; 
Several Members; 
Chief Grants Officer 

Mansion House The Lord Mayor hosted Dinner for London 
Government representatives and officers 
from all London Boroughs; and thanked 
them for their contribution to London. 

16/01/14 London Funders Board meeting Jemma Grieve 
Combes, Grants 
Officer 

Kings Cross Board meeting of London Funders, a 
membership organisation where your 
Officer is a trustee. 

P
age 19



17/01/14 WAC Arts Visit Deputy Ken Ayers; 
Chief Grants Officer 

London NW3 WAC Arts hosted a tour of their building 
and showed their work providing training 
in the performing arts and digital media 
for young people from disadvantaged 
backgrounds. 

21/01/14 London Funders Event Chief Grants 
Officer; Jemma 
Grieve Combes, 
Grants Officer 

Macquarie, City Poverty and Austerity: patterns and 
responses in London – an event looking 
at two programmes of research on 
poverty and social issues and the 
implications for funders in London.  
Chaired by the Chief Grants Officer. 

22/01/14 Association of 
Charitable 
Foundations 

Seminar Tim Wilson, 
Principal Grants 
Officer 

Kings Cross At the invitation of ACF, your officer led a 
training session on monitoring and 
evaluation for an audience of twenty 
other grant-makers. 

23/01/14 City of London 
Corporation 

Lecture Chief Grants Officer Mansion House The second City’s Giving Lecture of the 
Lord Mayor’s Charity Leadership 
Programme; delivered by Sir Ronald 
Cohen, on the theme “Revolutionising 
Philanthropy – Impact Investment”. 

24/01/14 The Clink Funders’ 
Meeting 

The Chairman; 
Vivienne Littlechild; 
Chief Grants Officer 

HMP Brixton An update on the development of the 
Clink’s third restaurant, and a tour of the 
site was given to their funders prior to 
the 27th February public launch. 

23/01/14 Action for 
Stammering 
Children 

Monitoring visit Vivienne Littlechild; 
Ciaran Rafferty, 
Principal Grants 
Officer 

Michael Palin 
Centre, 
Islington 

Regular monitoring visit to this unique 
and impressive organisation. 

 
General Events and Receptions 

Attended 21st December 2013 to 27th January 2014                             

 
Date Organisation Type of Event City of London’s 

Representative 
Location/ 
Borough 

Summary Comments 
  

P
age 20



21/12/13 Connaught 
Opera 

Concert The Chairman Isleden House The Chairman attended a performance by 
CBT funded Connaught Opera at Isleden 
House, a City of London Corporation 
sheltered housing scheme, of which the 
Chairman is champion. 

14/01/14 London 
Symphony 
Orchestra 

Dinner The Chairman; 
Wendy Mead 

The Barbican 
Centre 

The Chairman and Wendy Mead attended 
the London Symphony Orchestra 
Chairman’s Dinner. LSO Outreach work 
was funded by CBT from 2010-2012. The 
guest of honour was Sir Peter Maxwell 
Davies, Master of the Queen’s Musick 
(sic). 

21/01/14 Kazzum Play Tim Wilson, 
Principal Grants 
Officer 

Oxford House, 
Bethnal Green 

Your officer attended a drama produced 
by your grantee, Kazzum. Highlighting 
the personal difficulties involved for 
young people seeking asylum in the UK, 
this was a very-well produced play 
performed in front of an audience of local 
school children. 

 

P
age 21



P
age 22

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Committee: Date: 

City Bridge Trust 12 Feb 2014 

Subject:  

Grant Applications Statistical Report 

Public 

 

Report of: 

Chief Grants Officer  

For Decision 

 

 
Summary 

This paper summarises applications received and action taken under your 
grants programmes in 2013/14.  21 applications will be dealt with at today’s 
meeting for a total recommended sum of £1,179,700.  This leaves £6,504,040 
unspent on your grants budget for 2013/4 with 1 meeting remaining.   

Recommendation(s) 

Members are asked to: 
 

• Note the report 

• Consider the grant recommendations in the subsequent annexes 

 
Main Report 

 
Background 

1.1 This paper summarises action taken in 2013/14 on grant applications received 
under your Working with Londoners and Investing in Londoners grants 
programmes.  It charts overall spend against your current year grants budget, 
grants made by programme outcomes, action taken on applications received 
and a summary of today’s recommendations. 
 

1.2 City Bridge Trust grants are awarded in line with your policy guidance which 
includes the priorities and exclusions that were ratified for the Trust by the 
Court of Common Council, in July 2013.  
 

Grants budget 2013/14 
 
2.1 21 applications will be dealt with at today’s meeting for a total recommended 

sum of £1,179,700.  The implications of today’s recommendations are shown 
in Table 1 against the original grants budget for 2013/14.  The overall grants 
budget includes £2,892,000 carried forward from 2012/13 (approved by the 
Resource Allocation sub Committee in July 2013) and grant spend written 
back or revoked in 2013/14 to date of £142,710.   

 
2.2 If you agree the applications recommended for a grant today this will leave 

£6,504,040 unspent on your grants budget for 2013/4 with 1 meeting 
remaining.  The Chief Grants Officer’s report, elsewhere in your report, 
proposes options for using the remaining budget. 

Agenda Item 6

Page 23



 
Table 1: Overall spend against 2013/14 budget 

 

  Grants budget Grants spend 

Original Grants Budget £14,950,000   

Carry forward from 2012/13  £2,892,000   

Write-Backs & Revocations £142,710   

Total Budget Available £17,984,710   

   

Previous committee 
meetings     

April 2013   £1,430,095 

May 2013   £959,930 

June 2013   £992,107 

July 2013   £1,126,120 

September 2013   £1,195,427 

October 3/13   £1,162,395 

October 30/13   £1,102,160 

November 2013   £1,169,530 

January 2014   £1,163,206 

Sub-total approved spend   £10,300,970 

Remaining budget £7,683,740   

   

Today's recommendations     

February 2014     

Working with Londoners   £335,000 

Investing in Londoners   £844,700 

Total January 2014   £1,179,700 

Total Spend   £11,480,670 

Remaining budget £6,504,040   

 
Grants made by outcome area 

3.1 This is an unusual month as grants have been recommended across both 
your Working with Londoners and new Investing in Londoners grants 
programmes.  Working with Londoners is dealt with first.  Table 2 shows the 
breakdown of grants awarded this financial year by outcome area for Working 
with Londoners and Charts 1 and 2 show the proportion of grants awarded, 
including today’s recommendations by outcome area. Chart 1 is based on the 
number of grants awarded and Chart 2 is based on the value of grants 
awarded.   

 
 
 
 

Page 24



Table 2: Grant approvals by outcome area (Working with Londoners) 

 

 Number of grants Value of Grants 

Fund/Program 
Year to 

date 
Today's 
meeting Total 

Year to 
date 

Today's 
meeting Total 

Accessible London 24 1 25 £1,179,932 £50,000 £1,229,932 

Accessible Sports 4 0 4 £234,080 £0 £234,080 

Bridging 
Communities 23 1 24 £1,427,245 £90,000 £1,517,245 

Eco Audits 6 0 6 £14,105 £0 £14,105 

Improving 
Londoners' Mental 
Health 12 0 12 £857,450 £0 £857,450 

London's 
Environment 13 0 13 £656,270 £0 £656,270 

Older Londoners 18 0 18 £1,229,855 £0 £1,229,855 

Positive 
Transitions to 
Independent Living 23 0 23 £1,816,750 £0 £1,816,750 

Strengthening the 
Third Sector 14 2 16 £1,274,500 £195,000 £1,469,500 

Exceptional Grants 1 0 1 £80,000 £0 £80,000 

Strategic Initiatives 11 0 11 £605,507 £0 £605,507 

Grand Total 149 4 153 £9,375,694 £335,000 £9,710,694 

   

   

 

 
 
 
 

16%

3%

16%

4%

8%

8%

12%

15%

10%

1%

7%

0 5 10 15 20 25 30

Accessible London

Accessible Sports

Bridging Communities

Eco Audits

Improving Londoners' Mental Health

London's Environment

Older Londoners

Positive Transitions to Independent Living

Strengthening the Third Sector

Exceptional Grants

Strategic Initiatives

Chart 1: % grants made by outcome area by 

number of grants (Working with Londoners)

Year to date

Today's meeting

Page 25



 

 
 
3.2 Although you have awarded grants across all of your funding priorities you will 

see that there is some variation in the proportion of grants awarded by 
programme.  The programmes you have awarded most grants for in terms of 
number and grant amount are Positive Transitions to Independent Living, 
Bridging Communities and Accessible London.  Grant awards under 
Strengthening the Third Sector have also been high by value although the 
number of grants awarded is lower.  This is because awards made under this 
programme are often relatively high due to the strategic nature of the work.  
Slightly fewer grants have been made under ‘Improving Londoner’s Mental 
Health’ which is possibly due to the specialist nature of this work.  There are 
also fewer grants for ‘London’s Environment’ and eco-audits.  Eco-audits are 
slightly different from your usual grants programmes as instead of receiving a 
direct monetary award, the Trust pays for the costs of an organisational eco-
audit.  This scheme has been continued under your Investing in Londoners 
programme and it is notable that with a new simple online application form 
and better promotion, numbers are steadily increasing. 

 
3.3 Table 2 shows the grants awarded to date under your Investing in Londoners 

programme.  You will notice a relatively large amount of funding has been 
awarded under ‘Partnership programmes – hardship funds’.  This is the block 
funding awarded to Prisoners Abroad and Buttle UK to administer hardship 
funds for prisoners returning to London from abroad and survivors of domestic 
violence respectively.  As it is very early days for this programme the 
proportions of grants made have not been shown but will be in future 
meetings.   

 
 
  

13%

2%

16%

0%

9%

7%

13%

19%

15%

1%

6%

£0 £500,000 £1,000,000 £1,500,000 £2,000,000

Accessible London

Accessible Sports

Bridging Communities

Eco Audits

Improving Londoners' Mental Health

London's Environment

Older Londoners

Positive Transitions to Independent Living

Strengthening the Third Sector

Exceptional Grants

Strategic Initiatives

Chart 2: % grants made by outcome area by value of 

grants (Working with Londoners)

Year to date

Today's meeting

Page 26



Table 3: Grant approvals by outcome area (Investing in Londoners) 
 

Fund/Program 

Year 
to 

date 
Today's 
meeting Total 

Year to 
date 

Today's 
meeting Total 

English for Speakers 
of Other Languages 0 0 0 £0 £0 £0 

Improving Londoner's 
mental health 0 0 0 £0 £0 £0 

Improving London's 
environment 0 0 0 £0 £0 £0 

Making London more 
inclusive 3 0 3 £121,276 £0 £121,276 

Making London safer 0 0 0 £0 £0 £0 

Older Londoners 0 0 0 £0 £0 £0 

Reducing poverty 0 0 0 £0 £0 £0 

Resettlement and 
rehabilitation of 
offenders 0 0 0 £0 £0 £0 

Strengthening 
London's voluntary 
sector 0 2 2 £0 £194,000 £194,000 

Arts apprenticeships 1 0 1 £4,000 £0 £4,000 

Partnership 
programmes - 
hardship funds 2 0 2 £800,000 £0 £800,000 

London youth quality 
mark 0 0 0 £0 £0 £0 

Eco audits 0 1 0 £0 £1,500 £1,500 

Strategic initiatives 0 4 4 £0 £649,200 £649,200 

Exceptional grants 0 0 0 £0 £0 £0 

Grand total 6 7 12 £925,276 £844,700 £1,769,976 

  
 

   

Applications received 
 
4.1 Chart 3 shows applications received by month and the action taken (excluding 

strategic initiatives).  You will notice that there was a large peak in 
applications in July.  This was when your Working with Londoners grants 
programmes closed to new applications and the peak reflects a rush to submit 
applications before the closure.  Your Investing in Londoners applications 
launched in September 2013.  Application numbers are growing, with a small 
peak in December which looks set to continue into January with 29 
applications received before the month had closed. If all the applications at 
today’s meeting are approved 4 applications from your Working with 
Londoners programmes will remain pending.  Your officers hope to take these 
remaining applications to your March meeting. 

 

Page 27



 
 

Today’s applications 
 
5.1 25 applications will be dealt with at today’s meeting.  Table 4 notes the type of 

action required. Full details of each of these applications are shown in 
separate sections later on in your papers. 
 

Table 4: Action to be taken on applications today 

 

Action to be taken  No. 

Working 
with 

Londoners 
Investing in 
Londoners 

Applications recommended for grant 10 4 6 

Grants approved by delegated authority <£5k (to note)  1  0 1 

Grants approved by delegated authority <£25k (to note)  0  0  0 

Applications recommended for rejection 13  0 13 

Withdrawn applications (to note) 1  0 1 

Applications lapsed (to note) 0  0 0  

Total applications 25 4 21 

 
Jemma Grieve Combes 
Grants Officer 
 
T: 020 7332 3174 
E: jemma.grievecombes@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan

2012 2013 2014

Grand Total 35 32 34 45 26 26 34 38 67 1 2 13 23 30 29

Pending 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 8 0 2 5 22 30 29

Declined 21 17 19 30 13 13 19 26 41 0 0 5 0 0 0

Approved 14 14 15 15 13 13 15 12 18 1 0 3 1 0 0

35
32

34

45

26 26

34
38

67

1 2

13

23

30 29

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

Chart 3: Applications received by month and 

action taken

Pending

Declined

Approved

Page 28



 The City Bridge Trust 
 Working with Londoners 

 Summary of Grant Recommendations 

 Ref Requested Recommended 

 No. Organisation Amount Amount 

 

 Accessible London 

 a) 11956 National Army Museum £275,000 £50,000 

 Total Accessible London £275,000 £50,000 

 

 Bridging Communities 

 b) 11969 Foundation for Women's Health £90,000 £90,000 

 Research and Development - 

 FORWARD 

 Total Bridging Communities £90,000 £90,000 

 

 Strengthening the Third Sector 

 c) 11981 Eaves Housing For Women £103,338 £103,000 

 d) 11974 Evelyn Oldfield Unit £91,830 £92,000 

 Total Strengthening the Third Sector £195,168 £195,000 

 

 Strategic Initiatives 

 e) 12159 SPICE (London Time Credits) £385,200 £385,200 

 f) 12160 Greening the Economy Conference £20,000 £20,000 

 g) 12161 Social Finance's Impact Incubator  £24,000 £24,000 

   Project  

 h) 12162 Islington Giving £220,000 £220,000 

 Total Strategic Initiatives £649,200 £649,200 

 

 Grand Totals £1,209,368 £984,200 

Agenda Item 7

Page 29



Page 30

This page is intentionally left blank



 The City Bridge Trust 

 Investing in Londoners 

 Summary of Grant Recommendations 

 Ref Requested Recommended 

 No. Organisation Amount Amount 

 

 Strengthening London's Voluntary Sector 

 i) 12136 London Funders £54,000 £100,000 

 j) 12030 Voluntary Action Westminster £93,869 £94,000 

 Total Strengthening London's Voluntary Sector £147,869 £194,000 

 

 Grand Totals £147,869 £194,000 

Page 31



Page 32

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7a

Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7b

Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7c

Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7d

Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



 

Reference No. 12159 

Committee: Date: 

The City Bridge Trust 12th February 2014               

Subject: Strategic Initiative: ‘London Time 

Credits’ 

Public 

 

Report of: 

Chief Grants Officer 

For Decision 

 

Summary  

 

This paper proposes that you continue to fund the charity, Spice 

Innovations, to further develop its innovative model of 

volunteering in London over the next three years.  It sets out the 

progress made during the past two years of your funding and 

Spice’s plans to roll out the model into other London boroughs over 

the next three years. 

Recommendation 

That you approve a sum of £385,200 over 3 years (£134,400; 

£138,400; £112,400) to continue the development of an 

innovative model of volunteering in London, to be charged 
against the City Bridge Trust Strategic Initiatives allocation for 

2013/14. 

Main Report 

1.0 Background 

 

1.1 For the past two years, you have funded the charity, Spice Innovations, 
to develop a new model of volunteering in London, as a Strategic 

Initiative.  You approved the sum of £163,980 over one year in May 
2011 and in October 2012, you approved the further sum of £164,500 to 

continue the initiative for a further year.  

 

1.2 The model builds on the time banking approach to volunteering (whereby 

participants ‘deposit’ their time in the bank through volunteering and 

then ‘withdraw’ their time when they themselves need help with 

something).  With this new model, people use their time credits (‘Time 

In’ i.e. time spent volunteering) as a ‘currency’ in exchange for trips, 

events, entertainment or recreational facilities (‘Time Out’ activities) or 

to donate to another as a gift. 

 

1.3 In 2011, Spice secured start-up funding of £400,000 from the Office for 

Civil Society and NESTA (National Endowment for Science, Technology 

and the Arts), together with £150,000 from two foundations, in order to 

kick-start the time credit programme in six locations in England and to 
create a platform for developing time credits nationally.  One of the 

Agenda Item 7e

Page 81



 

Reference No. 12159 

locations was LB Lewisham and your grant enabled Spice to complement 

its work there by developing the time credits with three other London 

authorities – the Cities of London and Westminster as well as LB Tower 

Hamlets, in order to create four demonstration models that could be 

rolled out across London. 

 

2.0 Progress in London to date 
 

2.1 A full-time Head of Localities, hosted by City of London Corporation’s 

Community and Children’s Services, has led on the development of the 

London Time Credits programme with four London Partners (or ‘hosts’) – 

the City of London Corporation, LB Lewisham, Paddington Development 

Trust (in Westminster) and Look Ahead Housing Association (in 19 sites 

across London), leading to four models, each with a different focus.  She 

has also recruited, trained and managed the three Localities Facilitators  

working at the borough level that have also been the subject of your 

funding. 

 

2.2 All partners now have their own time credit currencies, or ‘Spice Pounds’, 
with one time credit earned for every hour given.  Each partner’s 

currency has its own ‘brand’ and the notes have been attractively 
designed. 

 

2.4 Spice, together with its four partners, or ‘hosts’, has been working with 
the voluntary and community sector and public services to embed time 

credits as a way to engage people more meaningfully in services.  Each 

locality has a different focus, depending on the local context.  By October 

2013, 90 organisations and groups were working on the initiative to 
embed London time credits and over 1,100 people had earned time 

credits in London.  A network of over 60 ‘Time Spend’ partners, where 
time credits can be used – either locally or London-wide - has been 

established, including Millwall Football Club, the City Lit Centre for Adult 

Learning and the Barbican.  This forms part of the wider UK network of 

over 200 ‘spending’ organisations. 
 

3.0 City of London Corporation 

 

3.1 Time Credits have been trading in the City of London since June 2012, 

where the focus has been on developing time credits in the Portsoken 
Ward.  Since then, over 1,700 hours have been given by 180 people.  

The commissioning team has been trained to involve users in 

commissioning, designing and delivering services.  In addition, training 

providers (including City Gateway, CSV, Recycling Fusion and Toynbee 

Hall) have been encouraged to integrate time credits into their services. 

 

3.2 Time credits are helping to support community development activity in 

the City where residents are growing in confidence and are starting to 

establish community-led groups, such as two gardening groups that have 

started on the estates and a cookery group. 

 

Page 82



 

Reference No. 12159 

3.3 The Town Clerk is an enthusiastic supporter of time credits and has 

requested Chief Officers to explore how time credits can be integrated 

across COLC departments.  Most obviously, this could be through 

opportunities to both earn and spend time credits through the 

Corporation’s libraries and Open Spaces but possibilities for spending 

time credits could also include obtaining financial or legal advice, for 

example, from City staff. 

 

4.0 Lewisham 

 

4.1 Here, the Localities Facilitator is based within Lewisham Council where 

the focus has been on health and social care needs.  A formal launch 

event was held in March 2013, hosted by Millwall Football Club, a popular 

‘spend’ partner and opened by the Mayor of Lewisham, Sir Steven 

Bullock.  The event was attended by key partners from the voluntary and 

community sector, health and social care providers, the local authority 

and partners from the business community.  “Lewisham Time Credits – 

the movie” was premiered at the event in which a diverse group of 

participants shared their experience of time credits. 

4.2 Spice is working with 600 people across 32 organisations in Lewisham.  
Most recently, time credits have been used across four local authority 

day centres.  Time credits have been incorporated into the day centres’ 

central service user committee where service users’ contributions, such 

as shaping services; planning and organising events; and volunteering in 
on-site shops; can be recognised.  

4.3 The Lewisham initiative is also working closely with local conventional 

Time Banks to integrate time credits into these schemes under a 

‘Lewisham Time Network’. 

5.0 Westminster 

5.1 Initially, Spice worked in partnership with Paddington Development Trust 

in Queen’s Park where time credits were launched in August 2012.  This 

partnership continues to thrive and more recently, Spice has worked in 

partnership with Westminster Volunteer Centre and Genesis Housing in 

order to grow the project into the surrounding wards of North 

Westminster, Harrow Road, Westbourne Park and Church Street, thereby 

creating a north Westminster hub. 

5.2 As at October 2013, there were 17 voluntary and community groups and 

204 individuals involved in the initiative, with this number anticipated to 

expand rapidly over the coming months. 

5.3 During the past 6 months, Spice has also started to work with more 

service delivery organisations, including a family centre, where young 

people are earning time credits for delivering activities, thereby bring 

time credits to new audiences and settings. 

 

Page 83



 

Reference No. 12159 

6.0 Look Ahead Housing Association 

6.1 Spice has worked with the housing and social care provider, Look Ahead, 

to use time credits to help it in its strategic aim of encouraging co-

production within its services for clients with disabilities and/or mental 

health problems.  Service users with high support needs earn time 

credits for organising and running events; contributing to tenants’ 

meetings and participating in the design of services. 

6.2 Since May 2012, Spice has enabled time credits to be utilised in 19 of 

Look Ahead’s services in London, benefitting nearly 120 clients.  It is now 

looking at how time credits can be expanded into additional services. 

7.0 Other projects 

7.1 During the summer of 2013, Spice ran a ‘Spend with a Friend’ campaign 

to thank existing volunteers and to encourage new ones to come 

forward, with match funding from the Cabinet Office.  This enabled Spice 

to work in 8 additional London boroughs, in partnership with 71 London 

organisations, including the Science Museum, the Big Lunch and several 
local volunteer centre and hospitals.  6,632 people earned time credits as 

part of the campaign. 

8.0 Future Plans 

8.1 By 2017, Spice plans to be working to support five regional hubs in 
England (one of which will be London) and two in Wales that will contain 

a network of four thematic programmes – Communities; Health and 

Social Care; Social Housing; and Schools and Young People. 

8.2 Spice will continue to work with its first phase partners in the Cities of 

London and Westminster, LB Lewisham and with Look Ahead.  Having 
established a pricing structure for participating partners, the time credits 

model is now fully funded in these localities. 

8.3 Support over three years from the Trust would enable Spice to expand 
the London Time Credits programme and build the infrastructure 

necessary to support the development of the model across London. 

8.4 Over the next three years, Spice proposes to develop the model in 5 – 6 

new London boroughs, in partnership with the local authorities 

concerned, housing associations, schools and the voluntary sector.  In 

addition to Westminster, considerable interest has already been shown 

by Hammersmith and Fulham and by Kensington and Chelsea, with 

further interest shown by Barking and Dagenham, Havering, Hackney, 

Haringey, Southwark and Waltham Forest. 

8.5 It is also proposed to expand the range of ‘Time Spend’ partners to 

include more high profile, national partners as well as local ones.  It is 

proposed to recruit a London Partnerships Manager to develop 

relationships with new partners and to roll out a marketing and 

communications strategy. 

Page 84



 

Reference No. 12159 

8.6 A London Partnerships Manager would also look at what barriers there 

are to spending time credits and prototype ways to overcome these, for 

example, by promoting time credits as an opportunity to try new 

activities and improve health and wellbeing. 

8.7 Spice anticipates that ‘London Time Credits’ will engage an additional 

15,000 people over the next three years to volunteer in their local 

communities, with a particular focus on community groups; health and 

social care organisations; schools and young people; and housing 

providers. 

9.0 Cost 

9.1 The cost of the proposed development of London Time Credits is set out 

in the table below which also shows the proportion that your funding 

would represent of the total London budget.  The proportion tapers 

downwards each year as it is anticipated that as the model is established 

in new localities, funding will be provided by the participating partners. 

 

 Salary Oncosts Expense

s 

Training Overhead

s 

Total 2014-

15 

Total 2015-

16 

Total 2016-17 

London 

Strategic Lead 45,000 8,100 2,400 500 7,000 63,000 64,900 50,100 

London 

Partnership 

Manager 34,000 6,120 2,400 500 7,000 50,020 51,500 39,800 

Head of New 

Business – 1 

day per week 9,600 1,730 480 100 1,400 13,310 13,700 14,000 

CEO – 0.5 

days per week 6,000 1,080 240 50 700 8,070 8,300 8,500 

Total 94,600 17,030 5,520 1,150 16,100 134,400 138,400 112,400 

% of total 

London 

budget      36% 26% 14% 

Total over 3 years:  £385,200 

 

10.0 Financial Observations 

10.1 Spice’s audited accounts for the year ended 31st March 2013 show a 

deficit of £180,577 (17.6% of turnover) comprising £264,955 on 

restricted funds, partially offset by a surplus on unrestricted funds of 

£84,378.  

10.2 The trustees of Spice are in the process of drafting a reserves strategy 

which they say will include a three-year target to hold a minimum of 3 

months’ worth of annual expenditure. Based on the current year forecast 

Page 85



 

Reference No. 12159 

this would equate to £350,516. At 31st March 2013 free unrestricted 

reserves amounted to £168,815 which equates to 1.4 months’ worth of 

current year expenditure. 

10.3 The forecast for the current year 2013/14 shows a surplus of £110,592, 

comprising £95,951 on unrestricted funds and £14,641 on restricted 

activity. Total income is expected to be £1,512,658, of which £1,151,587 

(76%) had been received as at 31 December 2013. Given the forecast 

surplus, the organisation is expecting free unrestricted reserves to 

increase to £258,000 by the end of March 2014 equating to 2.2 months’ 

worth of total expenditure. 

10.4 The budget for 2014/15 shows confirmed income as at 20 January 2014 

of £1,039,956 and total expenditure for the year of £1,233,530 resulting 

in a deficit of £193,575. A number of applications are currently pending 

with decisions due shortly which if successful would meet the deficit 

shortfall. In the event that these applications are not successful, 

budgeted expenditure for the year would be reduced accordingly.  

11.0 Conclusion 

11.1 The London Time Credits initiative is proving an effective model for 
shifting a culture of passive receipt of services to active participation and 

development of co-produced services.  It is a ground-breaking initiative 

that has opened up volunteering to new audiences and enabled people to 

be more closely engaged with their local communities.  

11.2 Your support for the past two years has been critical in enabling the 
model to become sustainably embedded within the Cities of London and 

Westminster and the boroughs of Lewisham and Tower Hamlets, as well 

as other Look Ahead locations. 

11 3 With the model now firmly embedded in these locations, further funding 

for the next three years will enable Spice to roll out the model to benefit 
other London areas, as well as increase the range of ‘spend’ partners. 

 

Recommendation 

 That you approve a sum of £385,200 over 3 years (£134,400; £138,400; 

£112,400) to continue the development of a new model of volunteering 

in London, to be charged against the City Bridge Trust Strategic 

Initiatives allocation for 2013/14. 

 

 

Jenny Field, Deputy Chief Grants Officer 

020 7332 3715 

jenny.field@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

Report written: 19th August 2013   

Page 86



Reference No. 12160 

Committee: Date: 

The City Bridge Trust 12th February 2014               

Subject: Strategic Initiative: ‘Greening the 

Economy’ Conference 

Public 

 

Report of: 

Chief Grants Officer 

For Decision 

 

Summary  

 

This paper proposes that you organise a conference with the 

theme ‘Greening the Economy’ in collaboration with the Calouste 

Gulbenkian Foundation. 

Recommendation 

That you approve a budget of up to £20,000 towards the cost of 

a conference entitled ‘Greening the Economy’ to be held in May 

2014, to be charged against the City Bridge Trust Strategic 

Initiatives allocation for 2013/14. 

Main Report 

1.0 Background 

 

1.1 As London’s largest environmental funder, you have exercised 

considerable influence and leadership in this field, including developing 
new and strategic initiatives such as the London Sustainability Exchange 

(LSx) which you established with grants totalling £1.65m over a five year 
period. LSx promotes and communicates the concept of sustainable 

development across the charitable, public and business sectors.  

 

1.2 You have also shown leadership through your Greening the Third Sector 

initiative which offers environmental audits to London charities.  Learning 

from the original pilot of this initiative was shared in your occasional 

publication ‘The Knowledge – Learning from London’ and helped 

influence the Charity Commission’s guidance on environmental 

responsibility and the role of charities.  The pilot won a ‘Green Apple’ 
award in November 2007. 

 

1.3 This paper proposes a conference to be held in May on the theme 

‘Greening the Economy’ which will help to disseminate the considerable 

environmental experience and knowledge which you have amassed 

during the life of the Trust and enable your grantees to share theirs. 

Over the years the conferences which you have organised have 

demonstrated your expertise as convener, as a catalyst for change and 

for offering a forum for small organisations to make connections and to 

learn from and to be inspired by the work of others.  Recent conferences 

Agenda Item 7f

Page 87



Reference No. 12160 

you have organised have included the dissemination of research 

undertaken for the Trust by the Institute for Public Policy Research 

(IPPR) on the future care needs of London’s growing older population 

and launching the findings of Refuge and NSPCC’s research into the 

needs of children and young people living with domestic violence.  Both 

of these conferences attracted widespread media coverage, thereby 

raising the profile of the issues raised and enabling new audiences to be 

reached. 
 

1.4 Last July, you held a conference in partnership with Barrow Cadbury 

Trust, LankellyChase Foundation and nef (New Economics Foundation) 

entitled ‘Creative Solutions for Tough Times’, a highly successful event 

which showcased practical and local responses to poverty and inequality 

and received much positive feedback. 

 

2.0 Other Environmental Achievements 
 

2.1 Growing Localities: The Trust has also demonstrated similar leadership 

at the community level. In 2012 – 2013 you launched your Growing 
Localities £2m grants programme to celebrate H.M. Queen’s Diamond 

Jubilee.  This was additional to your main grants programme London’s 
environment. 

 

2.2 Growing Localities comprised two themes, the first, ’Growing and 

Greening’ encouraged small community organisations to grow their own 
food and to improve open spaces in their localities. The range of 

organisations which you supported was impressive and the work funded 
has changed the landscape of many of London’s communities whilst 

often contributing to the local economy through a number of innovative 

food growing initiatives. Examples include the ‘Edible Playgrounds’ 

project of Trees for Cities, a school based project where children learn 

how to grow their own vegetables, the importance of nutrition and at the 

same time improve the appearance of the playground. ‘Grow bags for 

Gourmets’, a project of St Luke’s Trust, helps older people grow their 

own food, even on tiny balconies. As well as environmental benefits, the 

scheme helps improve well-being and in a modest way contributes to the 

‘green economy’. You have supported bee-keeping initiatives, community 

growing projects and even helped plant orchards in London. 

 

2.3 The programme’s second strand, Horticultural Work Training, promoted 

horticultural work training and helped address the then rising 

unemployment figures. It is benefitting some of the most disadvantaged 

Londoners including those with learning difficulties, mental health issues, 

ex-offenders and young people described as NEET (not in education, 

training or employment). Work funded included a grant to St. Mungo 

Community Association, a major provider of services for homeless 

people. Its ‘Putting Down Roots’ project  is a training ground for 

homeless and ex-homeless people where they can learn a variety of 

horticultural skills, helping prepare them to return to the world of work. 

Based in Merlior Street, formerly a derelict area used by people from a 

Page 88



Reference No. 12160 

nearby homeless centre, it has now been transformed into a Parisian 

style park with an area for food growing. As well as benefitting from 

therapeutic gardening, participants acquire horticultural skills which will 

help them back into the labour market. ‘Putting Down Roots’ has a 

business-like approach and some of the produce supplies a local 

restaurant thereby playing its part in the local economy. 

 

2.4 Last year, you launched the ‘Growing Localities Awards’, in partnership 

with Lemos and Crane, which recognised and celebrated the very best of 

“growing and greening” initiatives from non-profit organisations large 

and small.  A highly successful Awards Ceremony was held at the 

Barbican in April 2013.  Feedback from the event was universally 

positive, with community groups particularly valuing the opportunity to 

network and share their experiences.  As a consequence, you have 

agreed to continue the partnership in 2013/14.  A total of 140 

applications have been received this year (compared with 97 last year) 

and judging is due to take place in March 2014. 

 

2.5 Case studies from the Awards were written up into your latest edition of 
‘The Knowledge – Learning from London’ which particularly highlighted 

the role that participation in horticultural activities can play in increasing 
health and wellbeing amongst vulnerable people.  

 

2.6 ‘Growing Localities’ is now established as a recognised ‘brand’ amongst 

those working in London’s environmental sector.  Officers would like to 
use the proposed conference as an opportunity to consult on a possible 

successor scheme for this initiative that would build on its success to 
date.  

 

2.7 Get Young People Working – the Youth Offer:  This £3.2m initiative, 

launched in 2012, was one of your responses to the growing problem of 

youth unemployment. Each of the 32 London boroughs was offered 

£100,000 to work with a voluntary sector partner to improve the 

employability of young people who are NEET. Through work training and 

apprenticeships, literally hundreds of young Londoners are benefitting. 

Some of these boroughs are working with charities providing horticultural 

training. In Waltham Forest, for example, the charitable social 

enterprise, OrganicLea, trains young people with learning disabilities to 

grow food, which then supplies local shops and restaurants.  Trainees 

also produce ‘veg boxes’ of seasonal food for the domestic market. It is 

an exemplar project which addresses several of your priorities and at the 

same time is making a significant contribution to the green economy.  

 

3.0 Sharing the Learning – The Conference Proposal 

 

3.1 Your environmental portfolio, as illustrated by the earlier paragraphs, 

therefore, contains a range of good practice and innovation which 

deserve wide dissemination. Funding for the environment is an area 

often overlooked by charitable funders who do not always recognise the 

Page 89



Reference No. 12160 

wider social, regenerative and economic benefits. Therefore, there is a 

real need to highlight the role of the environment in promoting healthy 

living, well-being and the employment opportunities it offers to people of 

all abilities.  

 

3.2 It is proposed to work in partnership with the Calouste Gulbenkian 

Foundation, a national funder, on a major conference to help spread the 

learning from your respective environmental programmes, with the 

theme of ‘Greening the Economy’. A third funder is considering joining 

the collaboration, but this is yet to be confirmed.  If it does join the 

collaboration, its financial contribution would reduce the amount of 

funding required from the Trust.  

 

3.3 The conference would aim to: 

• share learning and best practice among small local organisations and 
with larger, established environmental organisations, including think 

tanks 

• inform other funders and policy makers about the value of engaging 
with the environment and the wide benefits it brings to individuals, 
communities and the local economy in terms of increasing health and 

wellbeing, particularly amongst those who are vulnerable  . 
• enable City Bridge Trust to consult on how to build on the success of 
its ‘Growing Localities’ work and design a successor programme (see 

paragraph  2.6). 

 
3.4 It would target relevant grantees of City Bridge Trust and the Calouste 

Gulbenkian Foundation, other funders, policy makers and other key 
commentators. A minister would be invited to speak but a key 
component would be an ‘open space’ session1 where grantees can learn 

about different approaches, network and build collaborations.  City 

Bridge Trust would benefit from this learning, not only to build on the 
success of ‘Growing Localities’ but also to look at where, for example, a 

targeted small grants initiative might be most effective. 
 

3.5 A multi-agency steering group comprising funders, representatives from 

environmental agencies and voluntary organisations would advise on 

content and detailed arrangements.  

 

3.6 It is suggested that conference would take place at a City venue, 

possibly Guildhall or The Barbican Centre. The Chief Grants Officer is 

currently investigating suitable venues, possible discounts/ free lets.  

Depending on the outcome of this, there may be a reduction in the 

venue hire budget line. 

                                           
1
 ‘Open Space’ is a type of facilitation that aims for maximum participation, energy and focus 

Page 90



Reference No. 12160 

4.0 Cost 

4.1 The cost would be as follows: 

• City/Central venue hire, lunch, refreshments, AV hire   22,650 

• Publicity and Conference Report        2,500 

• Cost of filming the event         2,500 

• Conference facilitation          1,350 

• Contingencies/sundries          2,000 

TOTAL          30,000 

 

4.2 It is proposed that the Trust and Calouste Gulbenkian Foundation each 

provide half of this amount, that is, £15,000 each.  In addition, you are 

asked to approve a budget to meet the Trust’s costs in organising the 

event (£3,000) and to engage a media agency, such as Champollion, to 

provide press and media support surrounding the event (£2,000) making 

a total of up to £20,000.  As stated earlier, this is the maximum that will 

be required and the budget may reduce if venue hire costs are less than 

currently estimated and/or if a third funder comes on board. 

 

5.0 Conclusion 

 

5.1 The proposed conference represents a real opportunity to add value to 
your grant-making by demonstrating your commitment to sharing and 

embedding learning. 
 

5.2 Collaborating with other funders obviously reduces the cost to the Trust 

of the conference costs but other positives of working in partnership 

include an opportunity to bring together national, regional and local 
initiatives to highlight innovative practice and help local organisations 

achieve national recognition.  
 

5.3 The collaboration would also offer the opportunity for some of your 

grantees to meet other funders who may be interested in funding some 

of the successful models, thereby increasing the sustainability of other 
work in which you have invested. 

 

5.4 Furthermore, the conference would provide an opportunity for the Trust 

to consult on how a successor programme to your ‘Growing Localities’, 

initiative might be constructed and targeted and where it might most 

effectively develop a small grants programme.  

 

5.5 The experience of other collaborators is that a partnership approach 

sends a stronger message, results in a greater profile and attention on 

the core issue the conference is covering, as was demonstrated in the 

‘Creative Solutions for Tough Times’ conference you held in July 2013 in 

partnership with Barrow Cadbury Trust, LankellyChase Foundation and 

Nef (New Economics Foundation).  The proposed multi-agency steering 

group to advise on the detail of the conference will build a collaborative 

approach to the delivery of this proposed conference. 

 

Page 91



Reference No. 12160 

Recommendation 

 That you approve a budget of up to £20,000 towards the cost of a 

conference entitled ‘Greening the Economy’ to be held in May 2014, to 

be charged against the City Bridge Trust Strategic Initiatives allocation 

for 2013/14. 

 

 

 

 

 

David Farnsworth, Chief Grants Officer 

020 7332 3711 

david.farnsworth@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

Report written: 29th January 2014   

Page 92



Reference No. 12161 

 

Committee: Date: 

The City Bridge Trust 12th February 2014               

Subject: Strategic Initiative: Impact Incubator Public 

 

Report of: 

Chief Grants Officer 

For Decision 

 

Summary  

 

This paper proposes that you support Social Finance’s Impact 

Incubator project, an initiative seeking to combine grant-makers’ 

expertise in social issues and effective charitable action, with 

Social Finance’s expertise in developing sustainable funding 

models. At a time when the charitable sector faces considerable 

funding pressure, the Impact Incubator is an initiative designed to 

grow and sustain successful solutions to some of society’s most 

complex and entrenched problems. In addition to the grant finance 
sought, City Bridge Trust is also requested to participate in the 

project steering group, and this should be a valuable opportunity 
to learn from other grant-makers as well as from Social Finance. If 

successful, the Impact Incubator is likely to benefit many 

charitable organisations and help City Bridge Trust identify where 
it can achieve greatest impact. 

Recommendation 

That you support the first year of Social Finance’s Impact 
Incubator project with a grant of £24,000, to be charged 

against the City Bridge Trust Strategic Initiatives allocation for 
2013/14. 

Main Report 

1.0 Background 

 

1.1 Established in 2007, Social Finance is a not-for-profit organisation 

working to tackle entrenched social problems such as financial exclusion, 

drug dependency, re-offending and social isolation, through the 

development of new funding mechanisms and delivery models. Social 

Finance is perhaps most widely known for the work it is delivering to 

reduce recidivism rates amongst short-sentence offenders at 

Peterborough Prison. This brings together several charities who work 

collaboratively to deliver a package of support that is funded by several 

grant-making trusts. If the programme achieves pre-agreed outcome 

targets then the Ministry of Justice has agreed to pay the grant-making 

trusts (who have provided the risk capital) their original investment plus 
a small ‘profit’ which is based on the assumed savings to the State 

Agenda Item 7g

Page 93



Reference No. 12161 

 

arising from rehabilitation. This funding mechanism is known as a Social 

Impact Bond and represents an innovative way to resource charities that 

deliver preventative services (which often otherwise struggle to raise 

finance for their work). It also offers grant-makers the opportunity to 

recoup and reuse their finance if the desired social impact is achieved.  

 

1.2 Grant-makers, including City Bridge Trust, have a good understanding 

both of complex social problems and of charities delivering effective 

solutions. However, grant-makers are also aware that many charities 

struggle to find funding that allows them to either sustain their services 

or grow them to scale. Grant funding is usually time-limited, and grant-

makers normally require organisations which have received funding to 

seek support from other sources at the end of their grant.  

 

1.3 Social Finance proposes to work with several leading grant makers to 

establish an “Impact Incubator”. This project will combine grant-makers’ 

understanding of successful social change with Social Finance’s expertise 

in investment structuring. The incubator project will work to develop 
sustainable funding models that address social issues faced by vulnerable 

communities, aiming to produce work that is as ground-breaking as the 

Peterborough Social Impact Bond.  

 
1.4 The focus of the project will be developing successful responses to 

entrenched social issues. This will not necessarily be focused on an 
individual charity’s work, but may rather draw together a number of 

organisations which can, collaboratively, deliver the desired impact.  

 

1.5 The Impact Incubator seeks to address five issues. First, charities often 
struggle to develop sustainable business models. Second, despite the 

significant knowledge held by grant-makers of the causes and effective 
solutions to social issues, grant-makers generally lack the capacity to 

help charities to expand their work beyond the life of any one grant. 

Third, despite its value to the charity sector there is relatively little 

funding for work to develop sustainable business models. Fourth, given 

funding pressures on the charity sector, there is widespread interest in 

developing new models that attract new finance beyond grants. Fifth, 

there is growing interest in social investment, and a growing pool of 

investors who are seeking investible propositions. 

 

2.0 Delivery Model 
 

2.1 The Impact Incubator has been designed as a five year project. Social 

Finance will start the project with a six month research phase, evaluating 

which social issues should be prioritised as well as establishing reporting 

and project governance structures. The incubator is expected to launch 

formally in September 2014. For each issue selected by the Incubator, 

there will be a period of model development follow by implementation. 

Model development, which will focus on developing sustainable social 

programmes, will depend on grant-funding whilst implementation will 

Page 94



Reference No. 12161 

 

involve taking the new model to a wider investment market. Social 

Finance will concentrate on two social issues each year, ten in total if the 

Impact Incubator runs to full term. 

 

 2.2 Social issues will be selected on the basis of scale (how many people are 

affected, and how acutely they are affected), potential to engage several 

grant-makers in the topic, strength of the charity sector’s response, 

possibility to draw in finance from public sector commissioners, and 

feasibility of developing a sustainable funding model. 

 

2.3 Work will be delivered by a core team at Social Finance, with oversight 

provided by a Steering Committee of grant-makers and charity sector 

practitioners. The committee will provide input on the social issues 

selected, the models developed, and the future plans for the Impact 

Incubator. 

 

3.0 Cost 

 
3.1 The five year Impact Incubator project is divided into pre-launch, model 

development and capital raising phases. Total project costs are £508,000 

over the five years. Social Finance has already secured a contribution 

from the Tudor Trust, and is close to confirming financing with two other 
leading grant-makers. You are asked to contribute £24,000 which would 

provide cornerstone funding to allow the first year’s work of the Impact 
Incubator to get underway. The recommended level reflects the 

geographical focus of the Incubator which, although intended to benefit 

London communities, will also examine social issues across the UK. 

 

4.0 Conclusion 

4.1 The potential for the Impact Incubator to identify ways in which several 

organisations can collaborate is attractive. Social problems rarely occur 
in isolation, and holistic models that combine the strengths of different 

agencies are more likely to deliver lasting impact than interventions by a 

single agency. City Bridge Trust would have a seat on the project 

steering panel and remain involved throughout, contributing its 

knowledge of the charitable sector and of social issues. There is likely to 

be valuable learning for the Trust through participation in this project, 

not only through building a greater understanding of sustainable funding 

models, but also through ongoing engagement with other grant-makers.     

5.0 Recommendation 

 That the Trust supports the first year of Social Finance’s Impact 

Incubator project with a grant of £24,000, to be charged against the City 

Bridge Trust Strategic Initiatives allocation for 2013/14. 

 

 

 

Page 95



Reference No. 12161 

 

 

 

 

 
Tim Wilson, Principal Grants Officer 
020 7332 3716 
tim.wilson@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
Report written: 21st January 2014   

Page 96



Reference No. 12162 

Committee: Date: 

The City Bridge Trust 12th February 2014               

Subject: Strategic Initiative: Islington Giving Public 

 

Report of: 

Chief Grants Officer 

For Decision 

 

Summary  

 

This paper proposes that you continue to support, in association 

with Islington Giving, a proven model to encourage giving money, 

time and talents to improve Londoners’ lives. It will also enable the 

successful model to be shared and developed with other London 

boroughs.  

Recommendation 

That you approve a sum of £220,000 over 2 years (£100,000; 

£120,000) to support the further development and roll-out of the 

Islington Giving model, to be costed against your budget for 

Strategic Initiatives for 2013/14.  

Main Report 

1.0 Background 

 

1.1 Islington Giving is a unique model of charities working together. It brings 

together six different organisations inspired by the Cripplegate 

Foundation. The coalition consists of five funders who all work in 
Islington; and Voluntary Action Islington, the umbrella organisation for 

community groups in the borough.  
 

1.2 You were a founder funder of this initiative; and it has proved a 

 considerable success in levering additional resources, including: 

 

• Over £2m raised to support charitable work in the borough; 
• More than 1,300 volunteers involved; 
• Over £1.4m invested in local organisations; 
• A £300,000 partnership with Arsenal Foundation as part of its 

       celebration of 100 years in Islington. 

 

2.0 Proposal 
 

2.1 The proposal is to build on the early success of the Islington Giving 

model and to further develop the model, whilst supporting other London 

boroughs to learn from the experience and to inform the development of 

similar initiatives. 

Agenda Item 7h

Page 97



Reference No. 12162 

2.2 Your previous grant has enabled considerable work to be undertaken 

with older people in Islington: reducing isolation using local venues, open 

spaces and opportunities as a way of supporting older residents to meet 

others and to connect with friends and with their wider community. 

 

2.3 This targeted work continues to inform the development of the Islington 

Giving model and can be seen as a piece of action research which is also 

providing practical benefits. 

 

2.4 The proposal is to continue supporting this work targeting older people in 

Islington and also to fund a part-time post to assist in taking the model 

and working with other boroughs to see how they may use the 

experience to develop a local initiative that can replicate the success of 

Islington Giving.  

 

3.0 Costs 

 

3.1 The Trust is being asked to provide a contribution of £220,000 over two 
years; £100,000 in the first year and £120,000 in the second year. This 

contribution would support: 

 

• Staffing costs for the lead delivery organisation and partners 
delivering targeted work with older people (including Age UK and 

North London Cares); 
• The cost of a part-time dedicated post (based at the Cripplegate 
Foundation) who would work with other London boroughs to 

replicate the Islington Giving model in a way which is locally 

appropriate; 
• A £3,500 contribution to volunteer travel and support costs; and  
• £1,000 towards promotional materials 

 

3.2 The uplift in year two reflects the anticipated expansion in the number of 

 delivery partners. 

 

4.0 Financial Observations 

4.1 The Cripplegate Foundation is the host organisation for Islington Giving 

 and will be legally responsible for any grant you may agree. .  

 Cripplegate is a grant-giving foundation with an investment asset base of 
 £29.5m (as per the audited accounts of 31 December 2012).  
 

4.2 Cripplegate’s operating surplus for the year ended 31st December 2012 

 was £78,147 (2.9% of turnover), comprising a deficit of £145,212 on 

 endowment funds, offset by surpluses of £124,586 on unrestricted funds 

 and £98,773 on restricted funds. Gains on the revaluation and disposal 

 of investments of £1,496,284 contributed to an overall surplus of 

 £1,574,431. 

Page 98



Reference No. 12162 

4.3 The reserves policy states that the organisation aims to hold free 

 unrestricted reserves of at least £700,000 which is equivalent to 7 

 months' worth of 2014 unrestricted budgeted expenditure.  The audited 

 accounts as at 31 December 2012 show free unrestricted reserves 

 standing at a negative £1,194,078.  The charity advises that this should 

 not be cause for concern as at the time the accounts were prepared, the 

 £1.125m cost of the purchase of Cripplegate's new premises had been 

 met from unrestricted reserves and had not yet been allocated against 

 the endowment.  We are advised that this sum will be set against the 

 endowment in the accounts for the year ended 31 December 2013 which 

 are currently being drafted (a copy of which will be available in April 

 2014). 

4.4 Cripplegate's draft outturn position for 2013 shows total income of 

 £2,012,614, expenditure of £1,824,980 and a surplus of £187,634 

 (£127,762 restricted and £59,872 unrestricted). 

4.5 Cripplegate’s current year 2014 budget shows a break even position on 

 income of £2,078,580 all of which has been confirmed, comprising a 

 deficit of £4,000 on restricted funds offset by a surplus of £4,000 on 

 unrestricted funds. 

4.6 Islington Giving (a restricted fund of Cripplegate Foundation 

 which would benefit from this CBT grant): 

 Cripplegate’s audited accounts for the year ended 31 December 2012 

 show that the Islington Giving restricted fund ended the year with a total 

 holding of £686,730, which was an increase of £259,430 over the 

 previous year. 

4.7 Islington Giving’s draft outturn position for 2013 shows total income of 

 £404,117, expenditure of £310,575, and a surplus of £93,542.  This 

 should increase the restricted fund to a total of £780,272. 

4.8 Islington Giving’s current year 2014 budget shows total income of 

 £656,700, expenditure of £500,000, and a surplus of £156,700.  This 

 should see the restricted fund further increase to £936,972. The charity 

 advises that this fund is needed to meet expenditure for increased 

 activity into the subsequent year(s). 

5.0 Allocation from Strategic Initiatives 

5.1 It is proposed that the cost of £220,000 is charged against your 2013/14 

allocation for Strategic Initiatives of £747,500 (subject to the potential 

uplift, depending upon your decision on the recommendation set out 

earlier in these papers in the Chief Grant’s Officer’s Progress Report). 

 

Page 99



Reference No. 12162 

6.0 Conclusion 

6.1 You have been praised for your contribution as a founder funder of this 

innovative partnership. The initial contribution from the founder funders 

has levered in considerable additional resources for the benefit of 

communities in Islington. 

6.2 The model has been externally evaluated with very positive results. It 

also received a ‘Highly Commended’ in the 2013 Charity Awards for 

Innovation in Funding and Grantmaking. 

6.3 This is an opportunity to embed early success; further develop the model 

and to replicate the success of one borough in other areas of London. 

5.0 Recommendation 

 That you approve a sum of £220,000 over 2 years (£100,000; £120,000) 

 to support the further development and roll-out of the Islington Giving 

 model, to be costed against your budget for Strategic Initiatives for 

 2013/14. 

 

 

 

  

David Farnsworth, Chief Grants Officer 
020 7332 3711 
david.farnsworth@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
Report written: 29th January 2014   

Page 100



Agenda Item 7i

Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7j

Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124

This page is intentionally left blank



Committee: Date: 

City Bridge Trust 

 

 

12th February 2014 

Subject:  

Grant applications recommended for rejection 

Public 

 

Report of: 

Chief Grants Officer  

For Decision 

Summary 

This report and the accompanying schedule outlines a total of 13 grant 
applications that, for the reason(s) identified, are recommended for 
rejection. 

 
Recommendation 

Members are asked to reject the grant applications detailed in the 
accompanying schedule. 
 

 
Main Report 

 
1. There are a total of 13 applications recommended for rejection at 

this meeting. They are listed within categories in the accompanying 
schedule. In each case the “purpose” that is used to describe the 
application is that provided by the applicant organisation. All the 
recommendations are based on criteria set out in your Policy 
Guidance.  
 

2. Copies of these application forms are available to view in the 
Members’ Reading Room. If any Committee Member wishes to 
query any of the recommendations, this can either be done at the 
meeting, in which case the decision may be deferred while full 
details are provided to the Member concerned, or by contacting the 
Trust office in advance of the meeting so that an explanation can be 
provided prior to or at the meeting.  

 

 
 
 
Ciaran Rafferty 
Principal Grants Officer 
T: 0207 332 3186 
E: ciaran.rafferty@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

Agenda Item 8a

Page 125



Page 126

This page is intentionally left blank



English for Speakers of Other Languages

!"#$%

&'(')*+,-./(0120
3'401+50-670

890+$*0'74+:'69/'*4+;0<0(.=>-2
'>?4+6.+/.7@+/>69+!A#+4.B>'((*
0)B(C101+3DEF+C-0?=(.*01G+H-
>?=7.<>-2+F-2(>49+4@>((4I+701CB0
4.B>'(+J'77>074+2066>-2+690?+B(.407
6.+0?=(.*?0-6G

;7'K6+K>2C704+K.7+690+.72'->4'6>.-L4+K>746
KC((+*0'7+.K+.=07'6>.-+M6.+DC2C46+"#!$N
49./+6.6'(+>-B.?0+.K+OP###+/9>(46+690
JC1206+K.7+690+BC770-6+*0'7+K'>(4+6.
>10-6>K*+'-*+B.-K>7?01+4.C7B04+.K
>-B.?0G

OQPI### 5R

F-K>0(1

Total English for Speakers of Other Languages (1 item) £97,000

Improving London's Environment

!"#S"

,00=+37>6'>-+8>1*

D-+F-<>7.-?0-6'(+87'>->-2+TKK>B07
/9.+/>((+4C==.76+'-1+10<0(.=
U.-1.-074L+0-<>7.-?0-6'(
01CB'6>.-+J*+67'>->-2
>-607?01>'7>04+>-B(C1>-2
B.??C->6*+10<0(.=?0-6+/.7@074
'-1+9.C4>-2+.KK>B074G

890+'==(>B'-6+>4+70VC046>-2+'+4CJ46'-6>'(
27'-6+6.+B.<07+690+B.464+.K+'-
0-<>7.-?0-6'(+67'>->-2+=7.27'??0+K.7
.72'->4'6>.-4+>-+J.69+690+<.(C-6'7*+'-1
=CJ(>B+40B6.74G+890+/.7@+/>69+(.B'(
'C69.7>6>04+K'((4+.C64>10+*.C7+BC770-6
2C>10(>-04I+'-1+690+B9'7>6*+1.04+-.6
=7.<>10+4CKK>B>0-6+0<>10-B0+.K+'
<.(C-6'7*+40B6.7+-06/.7@+6.+WC46>K*+690
70VC046G

O!X#I%#A 8Y

Z'B@-0*

Total Improving London's Environment (1 item) £160,805

!"#$%

&'()*+,)-+.*

/0'1.,"

$

!"),.*$#.'$

!"2.33"*4)-+.*$#.'$!"5"2-+.*

63.0*-$

!"70",-"4

8')*-,$&##+2"'

%$6'")

9:;$<+=$!"2.33"*4"4$#.'$!"5"2-+.*$>+*2$'"),.*,?$=)*4,2)1"
;@"$9+-A$:'+4("$;'0,-$9.33+--""$B$CD$E"F'0)'A$DGCH

I033)'A$.#$!"2.33"*4)-+.*,$#.'$!"5"2-+.*$B$<*J",-+*($+*$=.*4.*"',$)*4$K.'L+*($M+-@$=.*4.*"',

P
age 127



Improving Londoners' Mental Health

!"#"Q

87>C?=9+T<07
:9.J>'

D==(*>-2+K.7+4C==.76+6.+7C-+6/.+.K
.C7+U.-1.-+[0(K+90(=+27.C=4

D+<07*+4?'((+.72'->4'6>.-I+J'401+>-
[.?07406I+'-1+/9>B9+K'>(4+6.
10?.-467'60+9./+>6+/>((+?006+690
4=0B>K>B+=7>.7>6>04+.K+*.C7+E0-6'(+Z0'(69
=7.27'??0G

O!$IAX# 5R

TC64>10
U.-1.-

Total Improving Londoners' Mental Health (1 item) £13,560

Making London More Inclusive

!"#A#

\04C4+D7?*
59'7>6'J(0+87C46

8.+B.??>44>.-+:7.C1(.B@
'44.B>'604+6.+B'77*+.C6+'-+'BB044
'C1>6+'-1+104>2-+'==7'>4'(+K.7
KC6C70+=('-4+6.+>?=7.<0+1>4'J(01
'BB044+'6+890+U.-1.-+\04C4+50-670

H-B.?=(060+'==(>B'6>.-G+T72'->4'6>.-
9.(14+?.70+69'-+!+*0'74L+0)=0-1>6C70+'4
K700+70407<04+=(C4+'+4>?>('7+'?.C-6+'4
104>2-'601+C-70467>B601+KC-14+]+K'7+>-
0)B044+.K+>64+70407<04+=.(>B*G+89070+>4
'?=(0+4B.=0I+69070K.70I+6.+40(K+KC-1+69>4
/.7@G

O"I#AQ 5R

Y046?>-4607

Total Making London More Inclusive (1 item) £2,059

Making London Safer

!"#"X

;..7+.K+Z.=0+U61

5.70+KC-1>-2+>4+70VC>701+6.+67'>-
?.70+<.(C-60074+.<07+690+-0)6
69700+*0'74+6.+?006+>-B70'401
-001+K.7+.C7+407<>B04G

^7.?+690+>-K.7?'6>.-+=7.<>101+690+=.464
*.C+'70+J0>-2+'4@01+6.+4C==.76+/.C(1
J0+.=0-+.-(*+6.+69.40+/9.+B.??>6+6.
690+_<>4>.-I+?>44>.-I+069.4+'-1+<'(C04_
.K+690+.72'->4'6>.-+]+/9>B9+'70+J'401
.-+690+'1<'-B0?0-6+.K+70(>2>.-G

O!"#I### 5R

8./07+Z'?(064

!"#$%

&'()*+,)-+.*

/0'1.,"

$

!"),.*$#.'$

!"2.33"*4)-+.*$#.'$!"5"2-+.*

63.0*-$

!"70",-"4

8')*-,$&##+2"'

%$6'")

P
age 128



!"#"%

890+,.49

8.+=7.1CB0+'+;`;+M`.>B04+D2'>-46
`>.(0-B0N+J'401+.-+K>(?
6046>?.->04I+0-'J(>-2+*.C-2
=0.=(0+6.+49'70+690>7+0)=07>0-B04
.K+1.?046>B+<>.(0-B0+'-1+'1<.B'60
K.7+B9'-20G

890+=7.=.4'(+>4+6.+/.7@+/>69+*.C-2
=0.=(0+0)=07>0-B>-2+1.?046>B+<>.(0-B0I
/9>B9+>4+<07*+40-4>6><0+'-1+70VC>704
0)=076>40G+890+.72'->4'6>.-+]+'-+'764
27.C=+]+1.04+-.6+10?.-467'60+69'6+>6
9'4+690+-0B044'7*+4@>((4+'-1+0)=076>40
K.7+69>4G

O"SIXX# 5R

Z'7>-20*

!"#$A

Y.?0-L4+90'(69
'-1+57*46'(+Z.?0
[C==.76+5H5

Y0+/.C(1+(>@0+6.+40BC70+KC-1>-2+6.
70-6+'-+.KK>B0+4='B0I+JC*+.KK>B0
0VC>=0?0-6+'-1+70B7C>6+'+KC((6>?0+
:7.W0B6+B..71>-'6.7G

D+4?'((+.72'->4'6>.-+/9070J*+>64+0-6>70
6C7-.<07+K.7+690+?.46+70B0-6+KC((+*0'7
/'4+?CB9+(044+69'-+690+'--C'(+27'-6
70VC04601+9070G+5'='B>6*+6.+10(><07+690
=7.W0B6+'4+=7.=.401+'-1+6.+'B9>0<0
4C>6'J(0+.C6B.?04+>4+C-=7.<0-G

O!SXI%#Q 5R

F-K>0(1

Total Making London Safer (3 items) £291,469

Older Londoners

!"#!X

H-1>'-+5C(6C7'(
[.B>06*+;7.=+H-
;'*+50-670

8.+KC-1+70B7C>6?0-6I+67'>->-2+'-1
[C==.76+.K+`.(C-60074+6.+J0+'J(0+6.
T72'->40+690+50-670L4+F<0-64+'-1
'B6><>6>04+'4+/0((+'4+9>70+[044>.-'(
87'>-074a0<0-64+^'B>(>6'6.74G

D==(>B'6>.-+>4+>-4CKK>B>0-6(*+6'720601+'6
690+PAb+'20+27.C=+'-1+69070K.70+K'>(4
6.+?006+*.C7+=7>.7>6>04G

O!#I### 5R

&700-/>B9

!"#$%

&'()*+,)-+.*

/0'1.,"

$

!"),.*$#.'$

!"2.33"*4)-+.*$#.'$!"5"2-+.*

63.0*-$

!"70",-"4

8')*-,$&##+2"'

%$6'")

P
age 129



!"#Q$

R06'>(+87C46

8.+=C7B9'40+'+7'-20+.K+D44>46><0+H8
FVC>=?0-6+6.+0-B.C7'20+0(107(*
704>10-64+.-+.C7+[C==.7601+U><>-2
F46'60+>-+E>((+Z>((+6.+C6>(>40+690
>-607-06G

T72'->4'6>.-+=7.<>104+4C==.76+'-1
407<>B04+6.+704>10-64+>-+>64+'44.B>'601
704>10-6>'(+9.?04G+&><0-+690+4>c0+'-1
-'6C70+.K+69>4+70VC046+M>-B(C1>-2+K.7
J7.'1J'-1+407<>B04N+'-1+690+(0<0(+.K
70407<04+90(1+J*+690+.72'->4'6>.-+>6+>4
K0(6+69'6+69>4+B.C(1a49.C(1+J0
40(K]KC-101G

OPI"P$ 5R

3'7-06

!"#AP

8..6>-2+&7'<0-0*
;'*B'70+50-670

8..6>-2+&7'<0-0*+;'*B'70+>4+'
B.??C->6*+27.C=+=7.<>1>-2
;'*B'70+K'B>(>6>04+K.7
'==7.)>?'60(*+S#+(.B'(+0(1074I+/>69
690+'>?+.K+>?=7.<>-2+690>7+90'(69
'-1+/0((J0>-2

H-B.?=(060+'-1+B.-67'1>B6.7*
'==(>B'6>.-+K.7+/.7@+/9>B9+1.04+-.6
?006+690+'20+70VC>70?0-64+.K+*.C7
T(107+U.-1.-074+=7.27'??0G+R0VC046+>4
'6+'+(0<0(+0VC><'(0-6+6.+690
.72'->4'6>.-L4+6C7-.<07G

OSXIXSP 5R

Y'-14/.769

!"#!"

`>0/K>-107
:9.6.27'=9*
&'((07*+U61

;0(><07>-2+=9.6.27'=9*+/.7@49.=4
'-1+2'((07*+<>4>64+K.7+.(107+=0.=(0I
'-1+0-2'2>-2+690?+B70'6><0(*+>-
6'@>-2+=9.6.27'=94G

D(69.C29+'+4?'((+4C?+>4+70VC04601I+690
.72'->4'6>.-4+JC1206+K.7+690+BC770-6
*0'7+49./4+<07*+(>66(0+B.-K>7?01+>-B.?0
MO"###N+/9>(46+69070+'70+>-4CKK>B>0-6
B'49+70407<04+6.+?>6>2'60+'-*+K>-'-B>'(
7>4@+>-+4C==.76>-2+69>4+70VC046G

O"IAQS 5R

U'?J069

Total Older Londoners (4 items) £66,514

!"#$%

&'()*+,)-+.*

/0'1.,"

$

!"),.*$#.'$

!"2.33"*4)-+.*$#.'$!"5"2-+.*

63.0*-$

!"70",-"4

8')*-,$&##+2"'

%$6'")

P
age 130



Reducing Poverty

!"#S%

&06+[06+&>7(4

Y0+/.C(1+(>@0+6.+406+C=+'+5'7007
E0-6.7>-2+:7.27'??0+6.+B.?J'6
C-0?=(.*?0-6+'?.-246
1>4'1<'-6'201+*.C-2+=0.=(0G

59'7>6*+5.??>44>.-+70B.714+49./+690
.72'->4'6>.-+9'4+.-(*+"+87C46004I+/9>B9
>4+B.-67'7*+6.+70B.??0-101+2..1
=7'B6>B0G+:7.=.4'(+K'((4+.C64>10+*.C7
=7>.7>6>04G

OSAI#P% 5R

Z'B@-0*

Total Reducing Poverty (1 item) £45,078

Strengthening London's Voluntary Sector

!"#"$

^.C-1'6>.-+K.7
[.B>'(
H?=7.<0?0-6

8.+4C==.76+U.-1.-L4+4?'((+B9'7>6*
40B6.7+/>69+K700+407<>B04+6.
>-B70'40+>64+@-./(0120I+B.-K>10-B0
'-1+4@>((4+>-+@0*+'70'4+/9070+690*
70VC>70+4C==.76

890+'==(>B'-6+1.04+-.6+?'@0+'+4CKK>B>0-6
B'40+.K+10?.-467'6>-2+690>7+B'='B>6*+6.
'B9>0<0+690+46'-1'71+*.C+/.C(1
-.7?'((*+0)=0B6+/90-+=7.<>1>-2+KC-1>-2
K.7+>-K7'467CB6C70+'B6><>6>04G
T72'->4'6>.-+9'4+-.+K700+B'49+70407<04G

OXAI$X% 8Y

Y046?>-4607

Total Strengthening London's Voluntary Sector (1 item) £65,368

!"#$%

&'()*+,)-+.*

/0'1.,"

$

!"),.*$#.'$

!"2.33"*4)-+.*$#.'$!"5"2-+.*

63.0*-$

!"70",-"4

8')*-,$&##+2"'

%$6'")

8')*4$;.-)N,$>CO$+-"3,? PQHCRSTO

P
age 131



P
age 132

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Committee: Date: 

The City Bridge Trust 12th February 2014 

 

Subject: 

Withdrawn & Lapsed Applications (Working with 

Londoners programmes)  

Public 

 

Report of: 

Chief Grants Officer 

For Information 

 

 

Summary  

 

This Report draws your attention to those applications to the Working 

with Londoners programme which have been subsequently withdrawn 

by the applicant or lapsed due to additional information not 

forthcoming. 
 

Recommendation 

That you receive this report and note its contents 

 

 
Withdrawn Applications: 

 
Organisation      Purpose of Request 

  

Faith Matters “To support victims of Islamophobia 

through advocacy, signposting, casework 
and community education so that they are 

aware of their legal and civil rights” 

 

Application withdrawn as organisation is 

currently in its "fallow" period and cannot 

apply to the Trust until October 2014. 

  

 

Total Withdrawn Applications: 1 

Total Lapsed Applications:  0 

 

 

Recommendation 
That you receive this report and note its contents. 
 

 

 

Contact: 

Ciaran Rafferty, Principal Grants Officer 

Tel:  020 7332 3186 

Date report written:  30/01/14 

Agenda Item 8b

Page 133



Page 134

This page is intentionally left blank



Committee: Date: 

The City Bridge Trust 12th February 2014 

Subject: 

Grants/expenditure considered under Delegated 

Authority 

Public 

 

Report of: 

Chief Grants Officer 

For Information 

 

 

Summary  

 

This Report draws your attention to 1 grant which, since your last 

meeting, has been approved under delegated authority by the Chief 

Grants Officer. 

 

This particular allocation of funds is for an Eco-audit. In these cases 

no monies are paid to recipient organisations. Instead, the funds 

approved are used by the Trust to commission and appoint qualified 

professionals to undertake individual audits for the named charities. 

 

The total amount of expenditure and number of grants approved 

under delegated authority this financial year (inclusive of those 
below) is shown in Table 1. 

 
Recommendation 

That you receive this report and note its contents 

 

 

 

 

Eco-audits Approved 
 
 

Organisation      Amount and Purpose of Grant 

 

Pan Intercultural Arts £1,500 for the cost of providing an eco-

audit. 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 

 

Agenda Item 8c

Page 135



Table 1 

Summary of delegated authority spend for the year to date 
 

 

Applications at 

Committee 

Delegated authority 

< £5k including 

eco-audits 

  

Delegated authority 

< £25k 

  

  £ Number £ Number 

April 2013 10,125  5 97,700  5 

May 2013 0  0 30,060  2 

June 2013 0  0 47,500  3 

July 2013 10,580  3 15,000  1 

September 2013 1,152  1 125,295  6 

October 3/13 0  0 19,995  1 

October 30/13 5,000  1 48,760  2 

November 2013 0 0 44,500 2 

January 2014 10,126 3 42,400 3 

February 2014 1,500 1 0 0 

Total for year to date 38,483 14  471,210  25 

 

 

 

Recommendation 

That you receive this report and note its contents. 

 
 

 
 

 

 
Contact: 

Ciaran Rafferty, Principal Grants Officer 

Tel:  020 7332 3186 

Date report written:  30/01/13 

Page 136



 

 

Committee: Date: 

The City Bridge Trust 12th February 2014 

 

Subject: 

Reports on Monitoring Visits 

Public 

 

Report of: 

Chief Grants Officer 

For Information 

 

 
Summary  

 

You receive two sample monitoring visit reports at each of your 

meetings. These are in addition to the two substantial monitoring 

reports you receive annually.  One of these, a report reflecting on 

issues arising from the monitoring and evaluation of grants was 

presented to your February 2013 meeting whilst a statistical 
monitoring report looking at trends in your grant-making was 

presented to your November 2013 meeting. 

 
Reports to this Committee are from visits to the Southbank Centre 

and Step by Step. 
 

Your support to the Southbank Centre has enabled this iconic 

facility to provide a roof-gardening and mental health project for 

homeless people, whilst your support for Step by Step has allowed 

this organisation to expand the range of accessible sport and 

leisure activities available to disabled children from the Orthodox 
Jewish community. Alderman Alison Gowman took part in the visit 

to the Southbank Centre. 

 
Recommendation 

That Members receive this report and note its contents. 

 

 

 

 

 
Contact: 

Tim Wilson 
Tel:  020 7332 3716 
Email:  tim.wilson@cityoflondon.gov.uk   
Date report written:  27/01/2014 

Agenda Item 8d

Page 137



Page 138

This page is intentionally left blank



City Bridge Trust – Monitoring Visit Report 
 

Organisation: 

Southbank Centre 

Grant ref: 

10967 

Programme area: 

Improving Londoners' 

Mental Health\c)  Homeless 

people, transient people & 

rough sleepers 

Amount, date and purpose of grant: 

26/04/2012: £120,000 over three years (3 x £40,000) towards the Southbank roof 

garden project, improving the mental health of homeless volunteers.  

Visiting Grants Officer: 

Karisia Gichuke accompanied by Alison 

Gowman 

Date of meeting: 

7 January 2014 

Met with: Alison Bowyer Head of Grants and Trusts & Rebecca Preston, Director of 

Development, Paul, Head Gardener 

 

1. Introduction to the organisation: 

The Southbank Centre’s unique 21 acre site comprises outdoor riverside space and 

three major buildings – the Royal Festival Hall, the Queen Elizabeth Hall and Purcell 
Room and the Hayward Gallery as well as the Saison Poetry Library and the Arts 

Council Collection. These provide the base for a world-class programme encompassing 
a range of different art forms. Drawing on the heritage of the 1951 Festival of Britain, 

the Southbank Centre’s artistic programme is based on a series of one off and annual 

themed festivals, which enables the Centre to explore a particular theme or issue in 

depth across a range of different art forms. The Centre has an extensive programme 
of learning and participation work that is at the heart of every single festival. This 

provides opportunities for people of all ages to learn and take part in art forms in both 
one off and long term projects. The Centre gets over 20 million visitors a year and 

holds hundreds of free events. 

 

2. The project funded: 

The Trust is supporting a horticulture–based volunteering programme in the Queen 

Elizabeth Hall Roof Garden, which aims to improve the mental health and wellbeing of 

homeless people. The project is a collaboration between the Southbank Centre and 

the Eden Project, which has experience of creating gardens with teams of homeless 

volunteers. The other partners in the project are the Providence Row Housing 

Association, St Mungo’s and NOAH, who work with the 50 homeless people who 

participate in the project. The programme centres on building and maintaining the 

garden during the period March – September 2012.  During the winter months there 

is a more limited programme for volunteers.  
 

3. Work delivered to date: 

65 volunteer gardeners have built and maintained the Queen Elizabeth Hall Roof 

Garden, and over 200 volunteers recruited from the local community and Southbank 

Centre visitors have helped to maintain it. All volunteer gardeners have had skills 

training. All of the lead gardeners have been supported by Grounded Ecotherapy, a 

specialist mental health support team who provide multi-disciplinary therapy and 

rehabilitation for adults who have experienced homelessness, substance abuse and 

mental health issues.  Page 139



The Centre has also provided opportunities for seven local schools to visit and 

maintain the garden and 420 school children have taken part in workshops led by 

volunteer gardeners. In addition, the Roof Garden has provided a new accessible 

green space for London, with opening hours from the morning until evening during 

April – October. The surrounding land has been improved and trees planted, and 

150,000 visitors have used the garden for relaxation and recreation.   
 

4. Difference made: 

The gardeners involved have reported improved mental health and wellbeing from 

involvement in the project. Daily and weekly involvement has helped the gardeners 

develop routines, creating a structure to their lives which has resulted in 

improvements in their mental health. Working with members of the public has also 

improved the confidence of the gardeners. Forging relationships with each other, the 

public, and SC employees has been a central part of the project, and many of the 

gardeners have reported reduced isolation.  

 

The gardeners have had full responsibility for the ongoing maintenance of the garden 

and many have reported an increase in knowledge and skills in horticulture as a result 

of involvement in the project. 
 

5. Grants Administration:  
The organisation is one and a half years into a three year grant, and monitoring to 

date (year one report received) has been of a high standard, with the team staying in 

regular contact with the Trust and being very open about learning, planned changes 
to the project, and some challenges encountered.  
 

6. Concluding comments: 

The Queen Elizabeth Hall Roof Garden is now Southbank Centre’s longest established 
volunteering project. Working with the volunteer gardeners has given the Centre staff 

valuable new expertise in working with volunteers and involving the community. To 
develop this, the Centre has invested in a new full time position, the Garden Volunteer 

and Participation Coordinator who will manage the future development of the 

volunteering programme. It has become clear that the longer duration of the project, 

enabling the development and maintenance of routines has led to maximised 

engagement with the gardeners, allowed unexpected things to be achieved such as 

successful public interaction with a huge impact on confidence and wellbeing.  

 

Alderman Gowman and I spent an extremely enjoyable afternoon being shown the 
space which has been so carefully created and cultivated. It is clear that the garden is 

a unique partnership with lessons to share for organisations interested in developing 

London’s green spaces while working with vulnerable communities and the Trust 

should be very proud to be supporting the venture.  
 

 
 
 

Page 140



City Bridge Trust – Monitoring Visit Report 
 

Organisation: 

Step by Step 

Grant ref: 

11246 

Programme area: 

Accessible 

London\Accessible Arts 

Amount, date and purpose of grant: 

27/09/2012: £120,000 over 3 years (£40,000; £40,000; £40,000) towards a part-

time (18 hours/week) Sports and Leisure Coordinator and transport and venue costs.  

Visiting Grants Officer: 

Julia Mirkin 

Date of meeting: 

06 January 2014 

Met with: Rachel Gottesman, Development Manager, Judith Schaechter, Director and 

Hindy Rand, Sports and Leisure Coordinator (office based).  

1. Introduction to the organisation: 

Step by Step (SBS) is a parent-led charity set up in 1998 in response to a lack of 

activities for disabled children in the Orthodox Jewish community.  The community 

experiences significant levels of disadvantage and parents can struggle to find 

appropriate and affordable activities for disabled children and young people.  SBS 

meets this need by providing a programme of holiday play schemes, Sunday 

activities, residential holidays and an after school sports programme to over 100 
children with moderate to severe disabilities every week.  This not only gives children 

and young people access to sports, arts and leisure activities but provides respite for 
parents, families and carers. 

 

2. The project funded: 
The CBT funded Sports and Leisure Co-ordinators (job-share) are supporting the 

delivery and development of the sports and arts programme for disabled 

children/young people in the Orthodox Jewish community in Hackney and Haringey. 

Programmed activities include: swimming, horse-riding, ice skating, kayaking, 
hydrotherapy, cycling and soft play. Children are assessed when they join SBS and 

are allocated a place in the most appropriate activity for their ability and interest. 
They receive one-to-one support at all times, offered by SBS’ 100 volunteers, many of 

whom are working towards an NVQ in childcare.  Free transport is provided using SBS’ 

accessible minibus. Children are able to progress to more challenging activities as 

their physical abilities develop and as they become stronger and more confident.  

 

3. Work delivered to date: 

Programme developments since the commencement of CBT funding include an 

increase in after-school activities and a corresponding increase in the number of SBS 

regular attendees from 100 to 120. This has been accomplished by establishing two 

new after-school groups for adolescent boys, allowing SBS to cater for the needs of 

this specific group, but also releasing spaces in its after-school activities for new 

children. SBS has also introduced, in the last year, soft play as an entry-level activity 

for children with severe disabilities, and termly gala events to celebrate participants’ 

achievements with their parents.   

 

With funding from BBC Children in Need, SBS commissioned an external evaluation of 

its work in October 2012, which was carried out by A5cend. The report recommended 
that as SBS continues to expand and develop, it should invest more in its growing 

pool of volunteers.  Following this, SBS successfully secured funding from the lottery Page 141



(Reaching Communities fund) for a Volunteer Coordinator post to lead on all aspects 

of volunteer recruitment, training, supervision and support. SBS has produced a new 

induction pack for its Volunteers; it aims to liaise with other agencies that also use 

volunteers to work with families benefitting from SBS’s services, to ensure that, where 

possible, there is consistency for children. Although this creates more work for SBS, it 

is considered pivotal in maximising the development of children with disabilities and 

helps to network SBS with other local service providers.  

 

The move towards Personalisation has presented a significant challenge to SBS over 

the last year. It has necessitated the purchase of a new ITC system; it has required 

considerable staff time to support parents in completing the required paperwork and 

comprehending the new system. It has also changed the relationship that SBS has 

with the parents: SBS now invoices parents for services, for which it previously 

received funding directly. Staff believe that the challenges presented by this transition 

have been the greatest test that SBS has faced in the last year.  

 

4. Difference made: 

The SBS team speak passionately about the impact of the work and cite the progress 

made by individual children. The CBT grant has allowed SBS to increase the amount of 
activity it offers, introduce new activities to its programme and specific activities like 

the adolescent boys group. Having specific programme-related staff has also allowed 

SBS to develop its internal monitoring and evaluation questionnaire, called ‘Your Say’, 
which allows SBS to capture feedback from beneficiaries and improve its service. 

 

5. Grants Administration:  

The Trust received SBS’s first monitoring report in November 2013 and rated it as 

‘good’. SBS have successfully filled the Sports and Leisure Coordinator post and is 

progressing well with programme developments and expansion. SBS provided a 
financial report against the activity programme budget; it provided all coded invoices 

in relation to the budget and copies of P11 forms for all programme-related staff, 
including the CBT-funded Sports and Leisure Coordinator post, which is a job share. 

City Bridge Trust’s funding has been acknowledged as required in the audited 

accounts for 2013, the first year of grant funding.  

 

6. Concluding comments: 

CBT’s support for SBS’s activity complements its lottery funding, which is supporting 

capacity building. Despite SBS forecasting a deficit in 13/14, which is directly linked to 

reduced local authority funding and the transition to Personalisation, two significant 

multi-year grants, significant reserves and new plans to fundraise by direct mail, leave 

it secure and in a position to push forward with its plans for the future.  As well as 

being able to accommodate more children, SBS is also starting to think about a 

potential capital project that would see it develop sporting facilities of its own. This 
sort of development, although expensive initially, would allow SBS to be more in 

control of its activity; it would allow it to be able to schedule activity when it suited 

participants, rather than when facilities are available and it would remove the need to 

transport participants to facilities, which is an added expense.  

 

 
 Page 142



Agenda Item 12

Page 143

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 144

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 13

Page 145

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 146

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 147

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 202

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Outstanding Items
	5 Progress Report and Events
	Appendix to CGO Progress Report
	Events Table

	6 Grant Applications Statistical Report
	7 Grant and Strategic Initiatives Recommendations and Assessments
	Grant Summary - Annex order IiL

	7a National Army Museum - Recommended Grant £50,000
	7b Foundation for Women's Health Research and Development FORWARD - Recommended Grant £90,000
	7c Eaves Housing for Women - Recommended Grant £103,000
	7d Evelyn Oldfield Unit - Recommended Grant £92,000
	7e SPICE (London Time Credits) - Recommended Grant £385,200
	7f Greening the Economy Conference - Recommended Grant £20,000
	7g Social Finance's Impact Incubator Project - Recommended Grant £24,000
	7h Islington Giving - Recommended Grant £220,000
	7i London' Funders - Recommended Grant £100,000
	7j Voluntary Action Westminster - Recommended Grant £94,000
	8a Grants Recommended for Rejection
	Reject - WWL

	8b Withdrawn and Lapsed Applications
	8c Grants Approved under Delegated Authority
	8d Reports on Monitoring Visits
	Monitoring visit report - Southbank Centre
	Monitoring visit report - Step by Step

	12 Non-Public Minutes
	13 Revised Members' Handbook
	NOT FOR PUBLIC Members' Handbook 2014


